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In January 2002 the Bank initiated its new image brand:

“The Bank For People Like You”. As part of this extensive
positioning makeover, an original jingle was created to serve
as the basis for a 60-second television commercial that aired
on local cable networks throughout Bergen County. The lyrics
of the jingle conveyed the emotional benefits of being an
Interchange customer:

The Bank For People Like You

Life is fast; you're on the run

Need a helping hand just to get things done?
Someone to turn to, to give you a smile,

A hometown friend to go the extra mile?

Interchange, For People Like You
Interchange Bank, to see you through.
Interchange, For People Like You

The Bank For People Like You.

You want service, our best shines through.
Putting you first, that's what we do.

You want value, count on us,

Bank on the bank you know you can trust.

Interchange, For People Like You
Interchange Bank,

You know we’re going to see you through
Interchange, For People Like You

The Bank For People Like You.

i nterchange
Billlk?n Poople Litee You



Financial Highlights
Years Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 @
Income Statement Data (in thousands)
Net interest income (actual). . ..................... $39,022 $33,958 $31,394 $30,271 $28,902
Tax equivalent basis adjustment. . .................. 376 324 158 158 53
Net interest income (taxable equivalent) . ............ 39,398 34,282 31,552 30,429 28,955
Provision for loan and lease losses . .. ............... 1,500 1,075 750 1,200 951
Non-interestincome ... ............ .. ... .. ..... 6,514 5,578 4381 5,586 4982
Non-interest eXpense. . .. .............cooeunne... 25,063 22,873 21,177 20,063 19,416
Netincome ............coviieniieininann.., 12,877 10,540 9,256 9,635 8,609
Balance Sheet Data--end of year (in thousands)
Total aSSeLS. . . ..o $936,332 $830,949 $770,244 $706,125 $685,364
Total loansand leases. ... ......... ... ........... 615,641 581,323 560,879 511,976 478,717
Total deposits. .. ... 815,672 726,483 668,860 598,992 598,732
Total stockholders’ equity. .. ...................... 80,680 68,233 61,984 58,276 62,372
Per Share Data
Basic earnings per common share .................. $1.31 $1.08 $0.94 $0.91 $0.80
Diluted earnings per common share. . . .............. 1.30 1.07 0.94 091 0.79
Cash dividends declared ......................... 0.40 0.36 0.33 0.32 0.27
Special cash dividends declared .. .................. 0.04 - - - -
Bookvalue............. ... ... ... ... ... ... 8.22 7.04 6.33 5.77 5.77
Weighted average shares outstanding (in thousands)
BASIC. + + v e oo 9,809 9,778 9,810 10,547 10,784
Diluted. ............. ... . .. 9,933 0,822 0,837 10,593 10,856
Selected Ratios and Other Data
Return on average total assets . .................... 1.43% 1.31% 1.24% 1.39% 131%
Return on average total stockholders’ equity .......... 17.35% 16.06% 16.18% 15.52% 14.53%
Average total stockholders’ equity to average total assets . 8.27% 8.13% 7.64% 8.99% 9.00%
Net yield on interest-earning assets
(taxable equivalent) (2) ............. .. ... ... ... 4.68% 4.49% 4.41% 4.61% 4.61%
Efficiencyratio (3). ... ... o 55.06% 57.46% 58.52% 56.81% 53.59%
Net charge-offs to average loans and leases ........... 0.14% 0.11% 0.01% 0.28% 0.12%
Nonperforming assets to total loans and leases
and foreclosed assets . ............... ... ...... 1.00% 0.48% 0.29% 0.31% 0.38%
‘Allowance for loan and lease losses to
total loans and leases . . .. ...................... 1.17% 1.13% 1.10% 1.07% 1.18%
Allowance for loan and lease losses to
nonaccrual loans and leases . . .. ................. 120.86% 304.12% 441.15% 491.12% 471.20%
Full time equivalent employees ... ................. 226 217 214 206 208
Full service banking offices . ................. ... .. 18 17 17 15 15

Al per share data and average shares were restated to reflect a 3-for-2 stock split declared on May 23, 2002 and paid on July 12, 2002.
(1) Information for this period has been restated to reflect the Company’s acquisition of The Jersey Bank for Savings, which was completed on May 31, 1998 and was accounted for as a pooling of interests.
(2) Net yield on interest earning assets (taxable equivalent) is calculated by dividing net interest income (on a fully taxable equivalent basis) by average interest earning assets.

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Net IReIeSLINCOME . . ..\ oottt ettt ettt $39,022 $33,958 $31,394 $30,271 $28,902
Tax-equivalent basis adjustment. ... ........... ... ... . 376 324 158 158 53
Net interest income (on a fully taxable equivalent basis) ................. $39,398 $34,282 $31,552 $30,429 $28,955
Average interest eAMING ASSEIS . ... ... ...t vt $842,191 $764,218 $715,113 $660,528 $627,499
Net yield on interest earning assets (taxable equivalent). . ... ... ... ..., 4.68% 4.49% 4.41% 4.61% 4.61%

(3) The efficiency ratio is calculated by dividing non-interest expenses, excluding merger-related charges, amortization of intangibles and net expense of foreclosed real estate by net interest income
(on a fully taxable equivalent basis) and non-interest income, excluding gains on sales of loans, securities and loan servicing.

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

NOD-INETEST @XPLNSE .. ...\t $25,063 $22.873 $21,177 $20,063 $19,416
Less:
Mergerrelated charges ... ... . o - - - - 1392
Amortization of intangibles. .. ......... ..o 69 81 313 313 383
Net expense of foreclosed real estate. . ............................... 24 37 17 13 1
Non-interest expense adjusted. . .. ...... ... $24,970 $22.755 $20847 $19 737 $17,640
Net interest income (on a fully taxable equivalent basis) . ... ......... ..... $39,398 $34,282 $31,552 $30,429 $28,955
Non-interest inCome. . ... ... i 6,514 5578 4,381 5,586 4,982
Less:
Security GaiNS. ... ... L. 564 252 31 859 1,021
Saleofloans® . ... ... ... .. - 8 - 86 -
Net gain on sale of merchant credit card portfolio. . ................ ... .. - - - 329
Net interest income and non-interest income adjusted. .. .............. $45,348 $39,600 $35,621 $34,741 $32916
Efficiency ratio. ... ... 55.06% 57.46% 58.52% 56.81% 53.59%
* Does not include leases which were syndicated.
1
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(From Left to Right)
Anthony D. Andora,
Chairman of the Board;
Anthouy S. Abbate,
President and

Chief Executive Officer

The momentum that we
have gathered from the successful
execution of our business plan has
resulted in our achieving a record annual
financial performance with quality asset growth of
12.7% on the Balance Sheet. Year over year we were able to
produce a 22% growth in earnings. Earnings per diluted
share of common stock for the year ending December 31,
2002 were $1.30 as compared to $1.07 in the preceding
year — an increase of 21.5%. Net income for the year
ending December 31, 2002 was $12,877,000 as compared
to $10,540,000 a year ago — an increase of 22.2%. Fueling
the increase in net income was strong deposit growth

of 12.3%, coupled with an improved net interest margin

of 4.68% as compared to 4.49% for the year ending
December 31, 2001. Two of the Company’s key perform-
ance ratios, Return on Average Assets and Return on
Average Equity, reached record levels. For 2002 Return

on Average Assets increased to 1.43% from 1.31% in 2001.
The Company’s Return on Average Equity was 17.35% as
compared to 16.06% for the years ending 2002, and 2001,
respectively. Happily, as a result of the very good year we
had, we declared a special year-end dividend of $0.04 per
share that was paid on January 29, 2003.

Loans grew, year over year, 5.9% despite heightened
consumer loan prepayments which saw the consumer
loan portfolio churn by roughly 50% and decline by 9.2%.
Our consumer loan strategy was not to aggressively
compete for consumer credit since we were mindful of
the risk associated with being locked into a low yield,

long-term portfolio in the future when interest rates rise.

However, there
was a substantial
increase in our principal
focus, commercial lending, with
an increase of 17.0% in commercial loans

and 66.3% in commercial lease financing.

A number of events contributed to the year’s achievements.
In January we purchased certain assets and assumed certain
liabilities of an equipment leasing company known as
Monarch Capital Company (“Monarch”). Monarch

was integrated into our equipment leasing subsidiary,
Interchange Capital Company. We also opened our
eighteenth branch in Hackensack, New Jersey, the county
seat. The decision to locate in Hackensack has proved to
be a good choice as business generated from this location

has been very good.

Although the stock market was in the doldrums, our
mutual funds and annuities department had a banner
year, contributing $600 thousand, pre-tax, to earnings.
One of our sales people was ranked No. 1 nationally
out of 150 financial institutions who participate in

the Independent Community Bankers Financial

Services Broker/Dealer Partnership.

During the first six months of the year we rolled out our
new positioning statement, “Interchange Bank for People
Like You”. This was as a result of market research on how
our existing customers, lost customers and non-customers
saw the Company. The theme of this report illustrates

why we are considered “For People Like You”.




In July, the Company’s common stock was added to the widely followed

Russell 2000 and 3000 Indexes. The addition of the Company’s common
stock to the Russell Indexes, as well as the stock split we declared effective
July 12, 2002, provided increased visibility and liquidity for the Company’s
common stock. In fact, the Company’s common stock now trades better

with more volume and narrower spreads between the “bid” and “ask”.

On November 28, 2002 the Company announced that it entered into a
definitive agreement to acquire Bridge View Bancorp, a bank holding
company with $281.3 million in assets as of December 31, 2002. Upon
the closing, which is expected to be completed by May 1, 2003, we will
be a bank holding company of approximately $1.2 billion in assets with
twenty-nine offices in affluent Bergen County, New Jersey. It will increase

our market share placement from tenth to seventh in Bergen County.

We are pleased to add to the Board of Directors of the subsidiary bank,
effective January 2, 2003, William “Pat” Schuber, the former Executive
for Bergen County, New Jersey. He will make a valuable addition to the

Board and we welcome him.

Further positioning the Company for its continued growth and its
competing in an even more diverse and complex industry, we made
strategic management changes. Anthony J. Labozzetta, Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer, was named the Chief Operating
Officer of the Company and, effective February 3, 2003, Charles T. Field,

CPA, was hired as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer.

We are now positioned, not only in size, with a soon to be significant
footprint in northern New Jersey, but with the bench strength and
management to enable us to take the Company to new levels.

President and Chief Executive Officer

Anthony D. Andora
Chairman of the Board
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Extensive consumer research into the public’s
perception of the Interchange brand led to a
new image for the Bank.

A brand is comprised of the sum of all the real and perceived

T R e e e e L T e T

o , o T images that the public has about the Bank, its products and
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Eﬂkwn-v- ﬁ;{' %éﬁ < y its service levels. After careful measurement and analysis of
in-depth research conducted in 2001, it was decided that

T

the bank implement a new image brand centered around

Timeed  wiows W

the concept of “The Bank For People Like You.”

This position statement was selected because it best reflects

the attitudes and opinions of the majority of our customers.

It also serves to reinforce our community bank

philosophy and our personal service commitment

to the residents and businesses of Bergen County.

|
|

|

} Beginning in January of 2002, the Bank initiated
a marketwide campaign to heavily promote our
new brand. A 60-second television commercial
was created to air on cable TV systems that

reach over 350,000 subscribers in more than



(From Left to Right) 7
Joyee L. Colin, First Vice President and

Chief Information Officer; David A. Acevedo, ™
First Vice President, Sales Administvation;
Linda J. Obsuth, First Vice President, Marketing

100 communities in Bergen, Passaic and Rockland In order to best utilize the Bank’s most valuable

Counties. The commercial combined an original music assets, its employees, and to ensure that sales goals
jingle with lifestyle and life stage images to depict the were met, the Bank re-evaluated its sales and service
diversity that exists throughout the Bergen area market. culture during 2002 and segmented the responsibilities
Throughout 2002, a broad range of internal and external of the branch sales staff in line with a retail and

media was also used to extend the reach of our new brand commercial sales environment. Each branch was

into consumer and commercial markets. Additionally, the assigned a designated Sales Manager whose

Bank’s stationery and business cards were redesigned responsibilities include developing commercial

to carry the branding image and positioning. business in their respective markets and acting

as sales coaches to all branch employees.
Effective communications between the Bank and its
customers and prospective customers is achieved
through many channels. As the Internet continues to
grow in popularity, the Bank’s web site was upgraded

to reflect our re-branding effort.
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(From Left to Right) v
Patricia D. Arnold, A
Senior Vice President and
Chief Credit Officer; /
James Trouwborst, J

First Vice President, Senior ’( e
Commercial Loan Officer;

Diane Scriveri, Fivst Vice

President, Retail Lending

Interchange Bank is

widely known for its continuous

efforts in getting things done for its .

customers, in both their personal lives and in

their business lives. Knowing our customers’ needs as
well as we do has frequently allowed the Bank to take a
leadership position in the development of unique and
innovative product “firsts”. This considerable foresight
combined with a willingness to be creatively proactive

is what distinguishes Interchange from its peers.

In support of the Banks strategic plan to further grow its
commercial loan share of market, the Bank implemented
several initiatives during 2002. Marketing programs were
conducted to attract small business borrowers to the
Bank’s proprietary Rapid Response Business Loans.

Rapid Response Business Loans drastically reduce the
usual amount of red tape associated with documenting
valid commercial loan applications. Loan requests are

reviewed and processed quickly so that small and
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Commercial loans and leases at December 31
(in thousands)

medium-size businesses can take advantage of favorable

windows of opportunity to benefit their financial position.

Small business owners were also exposed to Small
Business Administration loan products. Interchange Bank

has been an SBA guaranteed lender since 1977. These loan




programs enable small businesses that may not qualify for
traditional bank financing, a practical means of financial
assistance. The Bank intends to accelerate its involvement

in SBA loan programs as it moves into 2003 and beyond.

Effectively servicing the business customer is of paramount
importance. The close working relationship established
with each business customer allows the Bank’s commercial
account officers to become familiar with all types of
businesses - large and small — and the unique factors

that drive their respective growth and success.

Retail borrowing during 2002 was propelled on the national
wave of response to lower credit costs brought upon by
unprecedented rate cuts from the Federal Reserve Board.

The Bank supplemented the high demand for consumer loans
in the second mortgage market by heavily promoting both
home equity loan and home equity line of credit products
throughout the year. The Bank also repeated its historically

successful annual “Loan Sale” during the third quarter.
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At Interchange Bank, putting the customer first is a practice —
not just a policy. To reinforce the importance of this culture,
the Bank’s Human Resource Department published a new
Standards Brochure in January of 2002 that defines and
demonstrates the level of service expected of Interchange
personnel. All employees, both management and staff, were
required to attend training sessions intended to “set the bar”

for service excellence.

Making the Bank even more accessible was achieved by
offictally opening our Hackensack office in January. The
office brings the Interchange brand to a mixed audience

of business and professional prospects within the densely
populated county seat. This location has already become

a springboard for new commercial business and is building

a strong presence in the market.

Customers in the Rochelle Park area will welcome the
completion of construction on the Bank’s newer office in
that community. Moving from a somewhat congested facility
in a strip mall to a more spacious free-standing building will

allow for an expanded lobby, additional reserved customer



parking, drive-up banking

and ATM access, and a separate

Investment Center.

Competition for deposits in the Metropolitan

area increased significantly during 2002. Interchange
launched a free checking product — Care-FREE Checking
— during the second quarter. Similar competitive offerings
held the fee-free feature to a limit of six to 12 months.

To gain market advantage, Interchange imposed no

time restriction but rather offered Care-FREE Checking
“forever”. The new product was promoted heavily,

resulting in a measurable increase in demand deposits.

During 2002, the Bank repeated a proven success

by promoting a “Super Saturday One Day Sale” in the
fourth quarter that offered incentives for new

deposit and loan accounts. Results were impressive.
Early in the second quarter, a new business product
was introduced that mimics the retail-oriented
Interchange Check Card. The Business Debit Card

allows business customers to make purchases that are

: (From Left to Right)
Joanne Westphal, First Vice President, Branch Administration;

Frank R. Giancola, Senior Vice President, Operations;
Jane G. Matheson, First Vice President, Human Resources
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Total deposits ail December 31 (in thousands)

automatically deducted from their business checking
account. The Card lets customers be more cost conscious
by allowing them to control expenses while avoiding
credit card interest charges — a welcomed benefit in

the active business community.
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Our shareholders and our depositors have

placed their trust in the Company’s ablhty
to protect and grow their 1nvestments

(From Left to Right)
Steven Fusco, First Vice
President, Treasurer;
Anthony J. Labogzetia,
Executive Vice President
and Chief Operating Officer; -
Charles T. Field,
Senior Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer

Every dollar invested in

the Company, whether in

the form of a share of stock

or a savings deposit, deserves diligent

protection and a sincere effort to provide a favorable 0.90
return. Interchange considers corporate governance to o0l
be extremely vital in the effective management of the

Company. Long before it was mandated by regulation, 030

the Company formed, and has continued to maintain, a

19980 1999

2000

2001

2002

Corporate Governance Committee, an Audit Committee , .
Diluted Earnings per Common Share
comprised of financial experts, and a Compensation for Years Ended December 31 (in dollars)*

Committee of independent directors.

growth, as well as an improved net interest margin.

Every director, every officer, every employee of the The increase in net interest income is a result, in part,
Company contributes to making Interchange Bank of the Company generating substantial growth in interest
what it is and what it will become. When compared earning assets, the lion’s share of which has come from

to its peer banks over the years, Interchange has commercial loans and leases. Return on average assets
consistently outdistanced them in all performance for the year reached an astounding 1.43% with an equally
ratios as is evident in the graphs seen here. astonishing return on average equity of 17.35%. These are,

undeniably, ratios that would meet anyone’s definition
The Company’s continued record earnings can be of a high-performance bank. Likewise, net profits reached

attributed to strong deposit and interest-earning asset an all-time high in excess of 20% year over year.
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1998 1999
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. Net lilgncomc for l’i’earsf Ended December 31]
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In order 1o keep our shareholders well informed about

the Company, a new Investors Relations page was created
on the Bank’s web site. Shareholders and other interested
parties can now receive up-to-the-minute stock quotes and
charts, analysts’ coverage, and earnings estimates along with
current press releases and other pertinent data. The site also
allows for parties to register for e-mail alerts to be apprised
of future Company events and announcements, and offers
the opportunity to participate in the Company’s Stock

Purchase Plan.

Return onfAverage Equity -

Latest 5 Y{,!gz:}rsgand l_iastllpjonths*

o Wj

15.00%

12.50% [ SSmame———t f ~

10.00%
FY1997 FY1998 FY1999 FY2000 FY2001 L™
Dec 2002

O [FC] S AllBanks o Mid-Atlantic T $500-1000 M

*All per share data was restated to reflect a 3-for-2 stock split declared

on May 23, 2002 and paid on July 12, 2002.

(1) Information for this period has been restated to reflect the Company’s
acquisition of The Jersey Bank for Savings, which was completed on May 31,
1998 and was accounted for as a pooling of interests.
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n on Average Assels
t S:Ygzarsi and Last 12:Months* -

FY1997  FY1098  FYI999  FY2000  FY2001  LTM
Dec 2002
CIFC] OAllBanks ©Mid-Atlantic © $500-1000 M ec 20

" Value of Dollar Invested (At December 31,)
Market Value

Cummulative  (including
Dividends Dividends dividends
Shares’ per share® Received received)

1969 1 $ 10.00

1995 12 $0.20 $32.75 104.10

q 1996 13 0.22 35.49 127.73

8 1907 19 0.24 40.04 288.67

B 1008 28 0.27 47.62 355.78

5 1999 28 032 56.73 367.26

8 2000 28 0.33 66.21 326.96

& 2001 28 0.36 76.45 436.76
2002 28 0.44 88.96 546.94

: [Retum on 1969 investment 5,469%]

* All per share data has been restated to reflect
all stock dividends and stock splits.
—— i { — s .
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

This section presents management’s discussion and analysis
of the results of operations and financial condition of Interchange
Financial Services Corporation on a consolidated basis (the
“Company”). The discussion and analysis should be read in
conjunction with the Company’s consolidated financial statements
and notes thereto on pages 31 through 51 and the summary
consolidated data included elsewhere in this report.

Earnings Summary

Earnings per diluted common share for the year ended December
31, 2002 increased $0.23 to $1.30 as compared to $1.07 during the pre-
ceding year, an increase of 21.5%. Earnings per basic common share for
the year ended December 31, 2002 increased $0.23 to $1.31 as compared
to $1.08 during the preceding year, an increase of 21.3%. Net income for
the year 2002 increased $2.3 million, or 22.2%, to $12.9 million when
compared to 2001. Two of the Company's key performance ratios are
return on average assets (“ROA”) and return on average equity (“ROE").
For 2002, the Company’s ROA increased to 1.43% from 1.31% in 2001.
The Company’s ROE increased to 17.35% in 2002 from 16.06% for the
previous year. Based on its earnings performance, the Company
increased the quarterly dividend paid on common stock to an anmwalized
rate of $0.40 in 2002 as compared to $0.36 in 2001. In addition, the
Company declared a special dividend of $0.04 per common share on
December 19, 2002. The special dividend was paid on January 29, 2003.
The earnings performance for 2002 was driven by a $5.1 million,
or 14.9%, increase in net interest income, on a taxable equivalent basis,
which resulted from growth in interest earning assets and deposits and
an improved net interest margin (“margin”). The margin improved
largely due to a decrease in the Company’s funding costs which, based
on the composition of the Company’s total deposits, was favorably affect-
ed by a decline in market interest rates. The earnings improved despite
the increased levels of consumer loan prepayments, which occurred as a
result of declining market interest rates. In addition, non-interest
income grew 16.8% and contributed to the growth in revenue. The
growth in revenue was partly offset by a 9.6% increase in non-interest
expenses that is mostly attributable to normal growth and expansion.
Non-interest income increased $936 thousand, or 16.8%, for 2002
as compared to 2001 due principally to growth from the sale of mutual
funds and annuities, security gains and an increase in the cash surrender
values of bank owned life insurance (“BOLI") contracts. Non-interest
expense increased $2.2 million, or 9.6%, for 2002 as compared to 2001.
Approximately $910 thousand of the growth is directly related to the
growth and operation of the Company's leasing subsidiary and a new
branch office that opened during 2002. These expansion programs are
aimed at enhancing the Company’s franchise value in its trade area.
Diluted earnings per common share for the year ended December
31, 2001 increased $0.13, or 13.8%, to $1.07 when compared to $0.94 in
2000. Basic earnings per common share for the year ended December 31,
2001 amounted to $1.08, an increase of $0.14, or 14.9%, when com-
pared to $0.94 in 2000. Net income for the year 2001 increased $1.3
million, or 13.9%, to $10.5 million when compared to 2000. The
strong earnings performance for 2001 was driven by a $2.7 million, or
8.7%, increase in net interest income, on a taxable equivalent basis,
which resulted from the growth in interest earning assets and deposits
and an improved margin. For 2001, the margin improved largely due to
a decrease in the Company's funding costs which, based on the composi-
tion of the Company’s retail deposits, was favorably affected by a decline
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in market interest rates. In addition, earnings were aided by a 27.3%
growth in non-interest income driven by an increase in fee income from
the Company’ leasing operation and growth in BOLI contracts. The
growth in income was partly offset by an 8.0% increase in non-interest
expense. The increase in non-interest expense was due to costs associat-
ed with the growth and operation of the Company'’s leasing subsidiary
and a full year’s impact of two new branch offices that opened during
2000. These expansion programs are aimed at enhancing the Company’s
franchise value in its trade area. Adjusting for the expansion programs,
non-interest expense grew approximately 4.6%. These items are
described in detail in the sections titled “non-interest income” and
“non-interest expense”.

Table 1
Summary of Operating Results

2002 2001 2000

Net income (in thousands) . ........ $12,877 $10,540 $9,256
Basic earnings per common share . . . . 1.31 1.08 0.4
Diluted earnings per common share .. 1.30 1.07 0.94
Return on average total assets . .. .. .. 1.43%  131% 1.24%
Return on average total equity. . ... .. 17.35% 16.06%  16.18%
Dividend payout ratio® . ........... 33.56% 33.37%  35.24%
Average total stockholders equity

to average total assets . .......... 8.27%  813% 7.64%

* Cash dividends declared on common shares to net income.

Results of Operations

Net Intevest Income

Net interest income represents the Company’s primary source of
income. Net interest income represents the difference between the inter-
est the Company earns on its assets, principally loans and leases (herein
referred to collectively as loans) and investment securities, and interest it
pays on its deposits and borrowings. When expressed as a percentage of
average interest-earning assets, it is referred to as net interest margin.
Table 2 sets forth a summary of average interest-earning assets and inter-
est-bearing liabilities for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000, together with the interest earned and paid on each major type of
asset and liability account during such periods. The average rates on the
earning assets and the average cost of interest-bearing liabilities during
such periods are also summarized. Table 3, which presents changes in
interest income and interest expense by each major asset and lability
category for 2002 and 2001, illustrates the impact of average volume
growth (estimated according to prior year rates) and rate changes
(estimated on the basis of prior year volumes). Changes not due solely
to changes in either volume or rates have been allocated based on the
relationship of changes in volume and changes in rates.

Figures are adjusted to a taxable equivalent basis to recognize the
income from tax-exempt assets as if the interest was taxable, thereby
allowing a uniform comparison to be made between yields on assets.




Table 2

Analysis of Net Interest Income

for the years ended December 31,
(dollars in thousands)

2002 2001 2000
Average Average  Average Average  Average Average
Balance Interest Rate Balance  Interest Rate Balance  Interest Rate
Assets
Interest earning assets
Loans (1) .................... $611,659 $45,496 7.44% $579,034 $46,319 8.00% $536,971  $44,329 8.26%
Taxable securities (2) ........... 200,257 10,312 5.15 160,202 10,138 6.33 154,947 10,054 6.49
Tax-exempt securities (2)(3). .. ... 14,545 822 5.65 11,844 712 6.01 12,251 696 5.68
Federal fundssold. ............. 15,730 246 1.56 13,138 557 4.24 10,944 700 6.41
Total interest-earning assets . . . . . 842,191 56,876 6.75% 764218 57,726 755% 715,113 55,779 7.80%
Non-interest earning assets
Cash and due from banks . .. ..... 20,635 20,216 19,403
Allowance for loan and lease losses . (6,572) {6,368) (5,953)
Otherassets. .................. 41,303 29,265 19,829
Total assets . ................. $897,557 $807,331 $748,392
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Interest-bearing liabilities
Demand deposits. . ............. $304,908 5,744 1.88% $246,037 6,871 2.79% $231,480 7,754 3.35%
Savings deposits ............... 136,527 1,952 1.43 128,987 2,801 217 117,037 3,624 3.10
Time deposits . . ............... 224,931 8,661 3.85 222493 12,398 557 190,890 10,682 5.60
Short-term borrowings . ......... 19,119 694 3.63 25,545 1,374 5.38 24,565 1417 5.77
Long-term borrowings. .. ........ 9,945 427 4.29 - - - 11,707 750 6.41
Total interest-bearing liabilities .. 695,430 17,478 2.51% 623,062 23,444 3.76% 575,679 24,227 4.21%
Non-interest bearing liabilities
Demand deposits. .. ............ 115,714 110,576 109,039
Other liabilides . . .............. 12,176 8,078 6,470
Total liabilities (4).............. 823,320 741,716 691,188
Stockholders’ equity ............ 74,237 65,615 57,204
Total liabilities and
stockholders’ equity. . .. ... ... $897,557 $807,331 $748,392
Net interest income (tax-equivalent basis) 39,398 4.24% 34,282 3.79% 31,552 3.59%
Tax-equivalent basis adjustment . . . .. .. (376) (324) (158)
Net interest income . .. . ............ $39,022 $33,958 $31,394

Net interest income as a percent
of interest-earming assets
(tax-equivalent basis)® .. ... ...... 4.68% 4.49%

4.41%

(1) Nonaccrual loans and any related interest recorded have been included in-computing the average rate earned on the loan portfolio.
When applicable, tax exempt loans are computed on a fully taxable equivalent basis using the corporate federal tax rate of 34%.

(2) The average balances are based on historical cost and do not reflect unrealized gains or losses.
(3) Computed on a fully taxable equivalent basis using the corporate federal tax rate of 34%.

(4)  All deposits are in domestic bank offices.

Net interest margin.
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Table 3

Effect of Volume and Rate Changes on Net Interest Income

(in thousands)

Year ended December 31,
2002 compared with 2001
increase (decrease)
due to change in:

Year ended December 31,
2001 compared with 2000
increase (decrease)
due to change in:

Net Net
Average Average Increase Average Average Increase
. Volume Rate (Decrease) Volume Rate (Decrease)
Interest income
Loans ............ ... .. .. ... . . © $3,357 $(4,180) $ (823) $3,472 $(1,482) $1,990
Taxable securities .. .................... 2,535 (2,361) 174 341 (257) 84
Tax-exempt securities . . ................. 162 (52) 110 (24) 40 16
Federal fundssold. ..................... 142 (453) (311) 210 (353) (143)
Total interest income ................ 6,196 (7,046) (850) 3,999 (2,052) 1,947
Interest expense
Demand deposits ...................... 3,130 (4,257) (1,127) 537 (1,420) (883)
Savings deposits .. .......... ol 175 (1,024) (849) 427 (1,250) (823)
Time deposits .. .. ... 137 (3,874) 3,737) 1,768 (52) 1,716
Short-term horrowings .. ........... ..., Q97) (383) (680) 62 (105) (43)
Long-term borrowings .................. 427 - 427 {(750) - {750
Total interest expense . ............... 3,572 (9,538) (5,966) 2,044 (2,827) (783)
Change in net interest income ............. $2,624 $2,492 $5,116 $1,955 § 775 $2,730

Non-performing loans are included in interest earning assets.

Net interest income, on a taxable equivalent basis, amounted to
$39.4 million in 2002, an increase of $5.1 million, or 14.9%, from $34.3
million in 2001. The increase in net interest income was largely due to
growth in average interest-earning assets of $78.0 million and a 19 basis
point improvement in the margin. The interest earning asset growth
was principally funded by a $74.0 million growth in average deposits,
which occurred largely in interest-bearing demand deposits. The
improvement in the margin of 19 basis points to 4.68% for 2002 as
compared to 4.49% for 2001 was due mostly to a decrease in the
Company’s funding cost. Two factors were largely responsible for the
decrease in funding cost: first, the composition (“mix”) of the
Company’s retail deposits experienced a positive shift towards lower
cost demand and savings deposits; second, short-term market interest
rates (used to price deposit products) declined. Each of these factors
served to reduce the Company’s funding cost.

Interest income, on a taxable equivalent basis, totaled $56.9 million
in 2002, a decrease of $850 thousand, or 1.5%, from $57.7 million in

2001. The decrease in interest income was driven by lower average rates.

on interest earning assets, mostly loans, as a result of a decline in market
interest rates. The average yield on interest earning assets decreased 80
basis points to 6.75% for 2002 as compared to 7.55% in 2001. Growth in
average interest earning assets served to offset some of the effects of the
lower average rates. The increase in average interest earning assets was
largely due to growth in securities and loans of $42.8 million, or 24.9%,
and $32.6 million, or 5.6%, respectively. The growth in average loans
was principally in commercial loans, which increased by $43.0 million,
or 15.6%, to $317.7 million in 2002, as compared to $274.6 million in
2001. In addition, equipment-financing leases generated by the Banks
leasing subsidiary, Interchange Capital Company L.L.C. (“ICC”) grew, on
average, $5.7 million, or 25.3%, for 2002. The average balance of con-
sumer loans (comprised mostly of 1 to 4 family first mortgages and
home equity loans) totaled $265.6 million in 2002, compared to $281.7
million in 2001, a decrease of $16.1 million, or 5.7%. The decline in the
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consumer loan portfolio was principally driven by higher levels of loan
prepayments as a result of the low interest rate environment.

Interest expense totaled $17.5 million in 2002, a decrease of $6.0
million, or 25.5%, as compared to 2001. The decrease was principally
due to a decline in the average rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities
of 125 basis point to 2.51% in 2002 as compared to 3.76% in 2001.

The decrease in average rates was mostly due to a decline in short-term
market interest rates, which had a favorable impact on average rates paid
on interest-bearing demand and time deposits. Average rates paid on
interest-bearing demand and time deposits decreased 91 basis points

and 172 basis points, respectively, for 2002 as compared to 2001. The
benefit derived from a decline in average rates helped offset the increase
in interest expense associated with the growth of average interest-bearing
liabilities of $72.4 million for 2002 as compared to the prior year.

The growth in average interest-bearing liabilities was due mostly to an
increase in interest-bearing demand deposits of $58.9 million, or 23.9%,
for 2002 as compared to 2001. In addition, savings deposits increased
$7.5 million, or 5.9%, for 2002 as compared to 2001.

In 2001, net interest income, on a taxable equivalent basis,
amounted to $34.3 million, an increase of $2.7 million, or 8.7%, from
$31.6 million in 2000. The increase in net interest income was mostly
due to growth in average interest-earning assets of $49.1 million. The
asset growth was principally funded by a $59.6 million growth in aver-
age deposits, which occurred mostly in time deposits and interest-bear-
ing demand deposits. In addition, an improvement in the margin of 8
basis points to 4.49% for 2001 as compared to 4.41% for 2000 con-
tributed to the growth in net interest income. The improvement in the
margin was due mostly to a decrease in the Company’s funding cost.
The composition of the Companyss retail deposits (mostly demand and
savings deposits), which are priced off of short-term market interest
rates, benefited from a decline in short-term market interest rates and
were responsible for the decrease in funding costs.




Interest income, on a taxable equivalent basis, totaled $57.7 million
in 2001, an increase of $1.9 million or 3.5% from $55.8 million in 2000.
The increase was driven by the growth in average interest-earning assets;
however, a decrease in the average rates resulting from a decline in mar-
ket interest rates served to offset some of the benefit of the asset growth.
The increase in average interest-earning assets was principally due to
growth in loans of $42.1 million, or 7.8%. The average balance of com-
mercial loans increased by $24.5 million, or 9.8%, to $274.6 million in
2001, as compared to $250.1 million in 2000. In addition, equipment-
financing leases generated by the Bank's leasing subsidiary, ICC, grew,
on average, $11.4 million, or 102.0%, for 2001. The average balance of
consumer loans (comprised mostly of 1 to 4 family first mortgages and
home equity loans) totaled $281.7 million in 2001, compared to $275.6
million in 2000, an increase of $6.1 million, or 2.2%. The average rates
on interest earning assets decreased 25 basis points to 7.55% for 2001 as
compared to 7.80% in 2000. Lower market interest rates were principal-
ly responsible for the decline in the average rate on interest earning
assets, which served to offset some of the benefit of the asset growth.

Interest expense totaled $23.4 million in 2001, a decrease of $783
thousand, or 3.2%, as compared to 2000. The decrease was principally
due to a decline in the average rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities of
45 basis point to 3.76% in 2001 as compared to 4.21% in 2000. The
decrease in average rates was mostly due to a decline in short-term mar-
ket interest rates, which had a favorable impact on average rates paid on
interest-bearing demand and savings deposits. Average demand and sav-
ings deposits amounted to $485.6 million for 2001, an increase of $28.0
million, or 6.1%, as compared to 2000, and accounted for 66.2% of the
Company’s total deposit and borrowing liabilities. Average rates paid on
interest-bearing demand and savings deposits decreased 68 basis points

\\to 2.58% for 2001 as compared to 3.26% for 2000. The benefit derived

from a decline in average rates helped offset the increase in interest
expense associated with the growth of average interest-bearing liabilities
0f-$47.4 million for 2001 as compared to the prior year. The growth in
average interest-bearing liabilities was due mostly to an increase in aver-
age time and interest-bearing demand deposits of $31.6 million, or
16.6%, and $14.6 million, or 6.3%, respectively in 2001 as compared to
2000. In addition, savings deposits increased $12.0 million, or 10.2%,
for 2001 as comparedto 2000. The growth in average interest-bearing
liabilities was partly offset by a decline in average borrowings of $10.7
million, or 29.6%. -

Nomn-interest Income

Non-interest income consists of all income other than interest and
dividend income and is principally derived from: service charges on
deposits; loan fees; commissions on sales of annuities and mutual funds;
rental fees for safe deposit space; income from the collection of principal
on acquired loans in excess of their carrying value, increase in the cash
surrender values of BOLI contracts and net gains on sale of securities
and loans. The Company recognizes the importance of supplementing
net interest income with other sources of income and maintains a man-
agement committee that explores new opportunities to generate non-
interest income.

Non-interest income for 2002 was $6.5 million, an increase of $936
thousand, or 16.8%, from $5.6 million in 2001. The growth was due
mostly to a $312 thousand increase in net gain on sale of securities and
an increase of $517 thousand in income related to the cash surrender
value of BOLI contracts. Contributing to the growth in non-interest
income was an increase in fee income derived from the sale of mutual
funds, which increased $330 thousand. The growth in non-interest
income for 2002 was reduced by a decline in net gains on the sale of
loans and leases of $150 theusand.

Non-interest income for 2001 was $5.6 million, an increase of $1.2
million, or 27.3%, from $4.4 million in 2000. The growth was due in
part to a $407 thousand increase in syndication fees from the sale of
leases. Also contributing to the increase was income of $378 thousand
related to an increase in the cash surrender value of BOLI contracts.
Other non-interest income, which increased $563 thousand, also con-
tributed to the increase. The improvement in other non-interest income
was largely due to increases in prepayment fees from the early payoff
of loans and late charges on loans of $125 thousand and $93 thousand,
respectively. The growth in non-interest income for 2001 was offset in
part by a decrease of $171 thousand from the collection of principal on
acquired loans in excess of their carrying value as compared to the
prior year.

Table 4

Non-interest Income

for the years ended December 31,
(in thousands)

2002 2001 2000
Service fees on deposit accounts . . . . . §2,581 $2,459 $2,386
Net gain on sale of securities ....... 564 252 312

Net gain on sale of loans and leases . . 400 550 136
Collection of principal on acquired

loans in excess of their

carrying value . ............. ... - 58 229
Increase in cash surrender value of

bank owned life insurance ....... 895 378
Commissions on sales of annuities

and mutual funds .............. 603 273 330
Allother ....................... 1,471 1,608 088

Total........................ $6,514 $5,578 $4,381

Non-interest Expense

Non-interest expense for 2002 increased $2.2 million, or 9.6%, to
$25.1 million as compared to 2001. Approximately $910 thousand of
the increase was attributable to the expansion of the Bank’s operations,
principally the full year expense for a new office opened in the first
quarter in 2002 and the growth of ICC. The growth in ICC was princi-
pally due to the assumption of Monarch Capital Corporation (“MCC”)
operations during the first quarter of 2002, which resulted from the
Company’s acquisition of certain assets and the assumption of certain
liabilities of MCC. Excluding the costs related to the expansion,
non-interest expense for 2002 increased $1.3 million, or 5.6%.

The largest component of non-interest expense, salaries and bene-
fits, increased $1.3 million, or 10.7%, for 2002 of which approximately
$500 thousand of the increase was directly related to the expansion pro-
grams described above. Salaries and benefits, excluding amounts related
to the expansion programs, increased 6.6% due mostly to normal promo-
tions, salary increases and higher benefit expenses. In addition, other
expense increased $696 thousand, largely due to an increase of $218
thousand in professional fees, an increase of $71 thousand in data pro-
cessing costs.and an increase of $353 thousand in all other expenses.

Non-interest expense for 2001 increased $1.7 million, or 8.0%, to
$22.9 million as compared to 2000. Approximately $726 thousand of
the increase was attributable to the expansion of the Bank’s operations,
including the full year expense for two new offices opened in the third
and fourth quarters in 2000 (Waldwick and Ramsey, respectively) and
the growth of ICC. Excluding the costs related to the expansion, non-
interest expense for 2001 increased $970 thousand, or 4.6%.



The largest component of non-interest expense, salaries and bene-
fits, increased $1.3 million, or 12.0%, for 2001 of which approximately
$434 thousand of the increase was directly related to the expansion pro-
grams described above. Salaries and benefits, excluding amounts
related to the expansion programs, increased 8.0% and was due mostly
to normal promotions, salary increases and higher benefit expenses.
Occupancy and furniture and equipment expense increased $437
thousand, of which $213 thousand was related to the full year expense
for expansion activities and contributed to the growth in non-interest
expense. [n addition, advertising and promotional costs, which
increased $125 thousand also contributed to the growth. Some of the
additional costs for advertising and promotion were aimed at attracting
new customers who may have been dissatisfied as a consequence of the
in-market consolidation of large financial institutions during 2001.
Other expense decreased $219 thousand due largely to a decline in
deposit intangible amortization of $232 thousand served to offset some
of the growth in non-interest expense.

One of the Company’s goals is to control expenses in order to
maximize earnings and shareholder value. The efficiency ratio is one
method utilized to measure the effectiveness of operating expenses. The
lower the efficiency ratio the more effective the Company is in utilizing
its resources 1o produce income. The Company’ efficiency ratio was
55.0%, 57.5%, and 58.5%, in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, as
shown in footnote 3 of the Financial Highlights. The Company outper-
formed its peers as the national peer group (commercial banks with total
assets between $500 million and $1 billion) average was 60.9% (peer
group data as of September 30, 2002) based upon the most recent
published report by SNL Securities. The national peer group average
was 61.8%, and 60.6% for 2001 and 2000, respectively (published by
SNL Securities).

Table 5
Non-interest Expense

for the years ended December 31,
(in thousands)

2002 2001 2000
Salaries and benefits . .......... ... $13,673  $12353 $11,034
Occupancy, furniture and equipment. . 4,562 4,432 3,995
Advertising and promotion .. . ... ... 1,295 1,251 1,126
Other expenses
Professional fees .. ............. 1,458 1,240 1,120
Directors' fees, travel and retirement 479 425 504
Data Processing. . .............. 639 568 575
Allother ................... .. 2,957 2,604 2,823
Total.................... .. $25,063 $22873  $21177

Income Taxes

In 2002, income taxes amounted to $6.1 million as compared to
$5.0 million and $4.6 million for 2001 and 2000, respectively. The
effective tax rate in 2002 was 32.1% as compared to 32.4% and 33.2%
for 2001 and 2000, respectively. Detailed information on income taxes
is shown in Notes 1 and 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Financial Condition

Loan Portfolio

At December 31, 2002, total loans amounted to $615.6 million,
an increase of $34.3 million, or 5.9%, compared to $581.3 million at
December 31, 2001. The growth was predominately in commercial
real estate mortgage loans and commercial and financial loans, which
increased $24.3 million and $18.7 million, respectively. Commercial real
estate mortgage loans are typically secured by first priority mortgage
liens on owner-occupied commercial properties. The commercial loan
growth was largely within the subsidiary Bank’s delineated community,
which is in Bergen County, New Jersey. In addition, growth in
commercial leasing of $10.5 million, or 66.3%, was principally due
to the purchase of certain assets and the assumption of certain liabilities
of MCC during 2002, which were transferred to ICC. At December 31,
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2002, commercial leases amounted to $26.4 million, or 4.3%, of the
Company’s total loan portfolio. A decline in the 1-4 residential real
estate mortgage portfolio of $21.2 million, or 8.4%, for 2002 as
compared to 2001, served to offset some of the commercial loan and
lease growth. The decline in the 1-4 residential real estate mortgage
portfolio was principally due to higher levels of loan prepayments as
a result of lower market interest rates.

While a significant portion of the Company’s loans are collateral-
ized by real estate located in northern New Jersey, the Company does not
have any concentration of loans in any single industry classified under
the North American Industry Classification System, which exceeds
10% of its total loans and unfunded commitments.



Table 6

Loan Portfolic
at December 31,

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Amounts of loans by type (in thousands)
Real estate-mortgage
1-4 family residential
Firstliens ........................... $100,302 $113,703 $110,369 $110,269 $ 89,852
Juniorliens ............ .. ... .. ..... 6,241 8,384 11,195 9,829 14,322
Homeequity ......................... 125,037 130,658 142,610 144,747 142,781
Commercial ............................ 222,628 198,319 181,722 166,354 148,875
CONnStIUCHON ... ..o et 11,359 5,265 3,755 4,008 074
465,567 456,329 449,651 435,207 396,804
Commercial loans
Commercial and financial ................. 104,542 85,801 76,702 63,684 64,067
Lease financing ............. ... .. .. ..., 26,356 15,850 23,804 1,813 791
130,898 101,651 100,506 65,497 64,858
Consumer loans
Lease financing .............. ... ..., 15,969 18,822 4919 7,569 8,822
Installment ............................ 3,207 4521 5,803 3,703 3,233
19,176 23,343 10,722 11,272 12,055
Termfederalfunds ... ................ ... ... - - - - 5,000
Total . ... ... .. $615,641 $581,323 $560,879 $511,976 $478,717
Percent of loans by type
Real estate-mortgage
1-4 family residential
Firstliens ............ ... . ...c...... 16.3% 19.6% 19.7% 21.5% 18.8%
Juniorliens .......................... 1.0 14 2.0 19 3.0
Homeequity ...................... ... 203 225 254 283 29.8
Commercial ............................ 36.2 341 324 325 31.1
Construction ..................... .. .... 1.8 0.9 0.7 0.8 0.2
75.6 78.5 80.2 85.0 82.9
Commercial loans :
Commercial and financial ................. 17.0 148 13.7 12.4 13.4
Lease financing ......................... 4.3 2.7 4.2 0.4 0.2
213 17.5 17.9 12.8 13.6
Consumer loans
Lease financing ................ ... .. ... 2.6 32 0.9 15 1.8
Installment ............................ 0.5 0.8 1.0 0.7 0.7
31 40 1.9 2.2 25
Termfederalfunds ...................... ... ‘ - - - - 1.0
Total ....... ... ... 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
The following table sets forth the maturity distribution of the The following table sets forth, as of December 31, 2002, the
Company’s loan portfolio as of December 31, 2002. The table excludes sensitivity of the amounts due after one year to changes in interest rates:
real estate loans (other than construction loans), and consumer loans: (in thousands)
(in thousands)
Due after Due after
- Duein  oneyear Due after one year Due after
one year  through five through five
orless fiveyears  years Total five years years
Commercial and financial . .* $34,722  $44,300  $25520 $104,542 Fixed interestrate ................. $56,914 $13,683
Lease financing . ......... 3,628 20,647 2,081 26,356 Variable interest rate . . .. ............ 14,748 13,918
Real estate-construction ...~ 4,644 6,715 - 11,359 Total . oo $71,662 $27,601
Total ................ $42994  $71,662  $27,601 $142257 __
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Loan Quality

The lending activities of the Company follow the lending policy
established by the Company's Board of Directors. Loans must meet the
tests of a prudent loan, which include criteria regarding the character,
capacity and capital of the borrower, collateral provided for the loan and
prevailing economic conditions. Generally, the Company obtains an
independent appraisal of real property, within regulatory guidelines,
when it is considered the primary collateral for a loan.

The Company maintains an independent loan review function.
The responsibility of this function rests with the loan review officer who
oversees the evaluation of credit risk for substantially all large commer-
cial loans and leases as well as a sample of smaller commercial loans and
leases. The loan review officer also monitors the integrity of the
Company’ credit risk rating system. This review process is intended to
identify adverse developments in individual credits, regardless of
whether such credits are also included on the “watchlist” discussed
below and whether or not the loans are delinquent. In addition, the
loan review officer reviews commercial leases and consumer loans con-
sidered homogeneous in nature, to identify and evaluate the credit risks
of these portfolios. The loan review officer reports directly to the
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of the Company
and provides quarterly reports to the Company’s Board of Directors.

Management maintains a “watchlist” system under which credit
officers are required to provide early warning of possible deterioration in
the credit quality of loans. These loans may not currently be delinquent,
but may present indications of financial weakness, such as deteriorating
financial ratios of the borrowers, or other concerns. Identification of
such financial weaknesses at an early stage allows early implementation
of responsive credit strategies. The “watchlist” report is presented to
executive management monthly and to the Board of Directors on a
quarterly basis.

Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses and Related Provision

Credit risk represents the possibility that a borrower, counterparty or
insurer may not perform in accordance with contractual terms. Credit risk
is inherent in the financial services business and results from extending
credit to customers, purchasing securities and entering into financial
derivative transactions. The Company seeks to manage credit risk through,
among other techniques, diversification, limiting credit exposure to any
single industry or customer, requiring collateral, and selling participations
to third parties.
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The provision for loan and lease losses represents management’s
determination of the amount necessary to bring the allowance for loan and
lease losses (“ALLL") to a level that management considers adequate to
reflect the risk of future estimated losses inherent in the Company’s loan
portfolio as of the balance sheet date. The Company evaluates the adequa-
cy of the ALLL by performing periodic, systematic reviews of the loan
portfolio. This process includes the identification and allocation of
specific reserves for loans and leases, which are deemed impaired, and the
allocation of reserves to pools of non-impaired loans. Portions of the
ALLL are allocated to cover probable losses in each loan and lease category
based on a migration analysis (loss experience) of the past five years, an
analysis of concentration risk factors and an analysis of the economic
environment in which the bank operates its lending business. The unallo-
cated portion of the ALLL is management’s evaluation of inherent risk in
the portfolio based on changes in the composition of perforiming afid noti-
performing loans, concentrations of credit, economic conditions, the con-
dition of borrowers facing financial pressure and the relationship of the
current level of the ALLL to the credit portfolio and to nonperforming
loans. While allocations are made to specific loans and pools of loans, the
total allowance is available for all loan losses. While the ALLL is manage-
ments best estimate of the inherent loan losses incurred as of the balance
sheet date, the process of determining the adequacy of the ALLL is judg-
mental and subject to changes in external conditions. Accordingly, there
can be no assurance that existing levels of the ALLL will ultimately prove
adequate to cover actual loan losses.

Loan loss provisions for 2002 amounted to $1.5 million, an increase
of $425 thousand from the prior year. In 2001, the loan loss provision
amounted to $1.1 million, an increase of $325 thousand from 2000. The
increase in the loan loss provision for 2002 was attributable to higher lev-
els of nonperforming loans and an increase in loan charge-offs, net of
recoveries. Loans are charged-off against the ALLL, when management
believes that the future collection of principal is unlikely. In 2002, nonper-
forming loans increased $3.7 million to $6.0 million as compared to $2.3
million in 2001. Loans charged-off, net of recoveries increased $202 thou-
sand to $862 thousand as compared to $660 thousand in 2001. The
charge-offs occurred principally in the ICC commercial lease portfolio,
more specifically, its indirect (purchased) lease portfolio, which accounted
for $624 thousand, or 67.4%, of total charge-offs. Refer to the section
titled “Nonperforming Assets” for more information about the nonper-
forming lease portfolio. Management of the Company determined that the
ALLL, as set forth in Table 7, was at a level sufficient to cover probable
losses in the loan portfolio as of the balance sheet date.



Table 7

Loan Loss Experience

for the years ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 3002
Average loans outstanding ............ .. . $611,659
Allowance at beginning of year ........... .. ..., $6,569
Loans charged-off:
Realestate .......... ... ... .. ... ..c..... 17
Commercial and financial ................... -
Commercial lease financing . ................. 875
Consumerloans .......................... 34
Total ... ... 926
Recoveries of loans previously charged-off:
Realestate .............................. 29
Commercial and financial ................... -
Commercial lease financing .. ................ 16
Consumerloans .......................... 19
Total ... 64
Net loans charged-off .................... ... 862
Provisions for loan and lease losses .............. 1,560
Allowance atend of year ...................... $7,207
Allowance tototal loans . ............ .. ... ... 1.17%
Allowance to nonaccrualloans ................. 126.86%
Allowance to nonaccrual loans and
loans past due 90 daysormore . .............. 120.86%
Ratio of net charge-offs to average loans .......... 0.14%

At December 31, 2002, the ratio of the ALLL to total loans was
1.17% as compared to 1.13% at the end of the prior year. The ALLL rep-
resented 120.9% of nonaccrual loans and loans past due 90 days or more
at December 31, 2002, down from 304.1% at the end of 2001. Each of
the ratios were impacted by a $3.7 million increase in nonaccrual and
restructured loans in 2002 as compared to the end of the year in 2001.
Refer to the section titled “Nonperforming Assets” and Table 9 for more
detail on loan delinquencies and nonperforming assets.

The Company has the same collateral policy for loans whether they
are funded immediately or based on a commitment. A commitment to
extend credit is a legally binding agreement to lend funds to a customer
usually at a stated interest rate and for a specified purpose. Such com-
mitments have [ixed expiration dates and generally require a fee. The
extension of a commitment gives rise to credit risk. The actual liquidity
requirements or credit risk that the Company will experience will be

2001 2000 1999 1998

$579,034 $536,971 $494,022 $462,296

$6,154 $5,476 $5,645 $5,231

11 186 120 470

- - 1,234 15

949 8 - -

4 23 59 135

964 219 1,413 620

22 99 10 30

264 27 14 35

8 - - .

10 21 20 18

304 147 44 83

660 72 1,369 537

1,075 750 1,200 951

$6,569 $6,154 $5,476 $5,645
1.13% 1.10% 1.07% 1.18%
304.12% 441.15% 491.12% 471.20%
304.12% 441.15% 491.12% 471.20%
0.11% 0.01% 0.28% 0.12%

lower than the contractual amount of commitments to extend credit
because a significant portion of those commitments are expected to
expire without being drawn upon. Certain commitments are subject to
loan agreements containing covenants regarding the financial perform-
ance of the customer that must be met before the Company is required
to fund the commitment. The Company uses the same credit policies in
making commitments to extend credit as it does funding loans.

In addition, the Company manages the potential credit risk in com-
mitments to extend credit by limiting the total amount of arrangements,
both by individual customer and in the aggregate; by monitoring the size
and maturity of the structure of these portfolios; and by applying the
same credit standards maintained for all of its related credit activities.
The credit risk associated with these commitments is considered in
management’s determination of the allowance for loan and lease losses
and amounts to $145,000.

20




Table 8

Allocation of Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses

at December 31,
(dollars in thousands)

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
% of % of % of % of % of
Loans Loans Loans Loans Loans
to Total to Total to Total to Total to Total
Amount Loans"” Amount Loans”  Amount Loans®  Amount Loans”  Amount Loans"
Realestate ................ $3,724 75.6% $4,028 785% $2,713 80.2% $2,191 85.0% $2,330 82.9%
Commercial and financial .... 1,435 17.0 1,389 14.8 931 13.6 634 12,5 917 14.4
Commercial lease financing . . . 720 4.3 542 2.7 435 51 81 18 119 2.0
Consumer loans . .......... 132 3.1 5 4.0 35 1.1 82 0.7 93 0.7
Unallocated . .............. 1,196 605 - 2,040 - 2,488 - 2,186

$7,207 100.0% $6,569 100.0%  $6,154 100.0% $5,476 100.0%  $5,645 100.0%

(1) This column reflects each respective class of loans as a percent of total loans.
The above allocation is intended for analytical purposes and may not be indicative of the categories in which future loan losses may occur.

Nonperforming Assets

Nonperforming assets consist of nonaccrual loans, restructured according to contractual terms. At December 31, 2002, nonperforming
loans and foreclosed assets (comprised of foreclosed real estate and assets increased $3.3 million, or 119.1%, as compared to the end of the
repossessed assets). Loans are placed on nonaccrual status when, in the prior year. The increase in nonperforming assets was due mainly to a
opinion of management, the future collection of interest or principal $1.3 million increase in nonaccrual leases in the Company’s equipment
according to contractual terms may be doubtful or when principal or lease finance subsidiary, ICC, and a $2.3 million increase in nonaccrual
interest payments are in arrears 90 days or more. Foreclosed real estate, commercial loans. The commercial loans consisted of one commercial
representing real estate collateral acquired by legal foreclosure proce- real estate mortgage amounting to $1.0 million and two commaercial
dures, is valued using independent appraisals, and the Company’s and industrial loans amounting to $1.3 million. Nonperforming assets
policy is to obtain revised appraisals annually. The Company intends increased $1.2 million, or 70%, in 2001 as compared to 2000. Based
1o dispose of each property at or near its current valuation. However, on the current information available, except for the loans included in
there can be no assurance that disposals will be made as soon as the table, management believes that there were no material probable
anticipated or at expected values. problem loans or leases, either individually or in the aggregate, at

Table 9 below presents the detail of nonperforming assets and the December 31, 2002.

aggregate of loans whose principal and/or interest has not been paid

Table 9
Loan Delinquencies and Nonperforming Assets

at December 31,
(dollars in thousands)

2002 2001 _2000 1999 1998
Loans delinquent and accruing interest
Loans past due 30-89 days . . ................. $2,121 $1,938 $2,058 $190 $379
Loans past due 90 daysormore . .............. - - - - -
Total loans delinquent and accruing interest . . . $2,121 $1,938 $2,058 _$190 _$379
Nonaccrualloans .. ......... ... ... ... ....... $5,963 $2,160 $1,395 $1,115 $1,198
Foreclosed assets ............................ 176 492 250 250 84
Restructured loans . . .............. ... ... .. - 150 - _ 20 __ 528
Total nonperforming assets .................. $6,139 $2.802 ﬂb_ﬁ@ M w
Total nonperforming assets and loans B - - - -
pastdue 90 daysormore ........... ... ... $6,139 $2,802 $1,645 $1,587 $1,810
Nonaccrual loans to total loans ................. 0.97% 0.37% 0.25% 0.22% 0.25%
Nonperforming assets to total loans and
foreclosed assets ........... ... ... . ... ..., 1.00% 0.48% 0.29% 0.31% 0.38%
Nonperforming assets to total assets ............. 0.66% 0.34% 0.21% 0.22% 0.26%
Nonaccrual loans and loans past due 90 days
ormoretototalloans ... ... ... ... ... ... 0.97% 0.37% 0.25% 0.22% 0.25%
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As previously noted, the charge-offs have occurred mostly in the two
commercial lease portfolios that were purchased from brokers (indirect)
during 2001. Based on the best current available information, ICC's indi-
rect commercial lease portfolio, which has experienced most of the
charge-offs (48% of all leases charged-off in 2002), represents the greatest
identified risk. At December 31, 2002, ICCs indirect lease portfolio
amounted to $1.2 million of which $169 thousand was past due 90 days
or more. At December 31, 2002, approximately $148 thousand of the
Company’s ALLL was allocated for ICC5 indirect lease portfolio that was
past due 90 days or more. 1CC did not purchase any indirect lease port-
folios in 2002. Furthermore, ICC’s credit policy has been amended to
exclude the purchase of indirect lease portfolios, on a flow basis or in the
aggregate, from indirect sources and the Bank's Board of Directors must
approve any exceptions to policy Management is presently working
with its vendors and other entities to resolve the delinquencies in the
lease portfolio. The proposed resolution includes, but is not limited to,
obtaining possession of the equipment, which will be re-marketed
by the vendors to new customers.

Table 10

Securities Held-to-Maturity and Securities
Available-for-Sale

The Company identifies as “securities available-for-sale” securities
used as part of its asset/liability management strategy, or securities that
may be sold in response to, among other things, changes in interest rates
and prepayment risk. Debt securities purchased with the intent and
ability to hold until maturity are classified as “held-to-maturity”.

See Notes 1 and 4 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for additional information concerning securities.

Table 10 presents a summary of the contractual maturities and
weighted average vields (adjusted to a taxable equivalent basis using the
corporate federal tax rate of 34%) of “securities held-to-maturity” and
“securities available-for-sale”. Historical cost was used to calculate the
weighted-average yields.

Securities

at December 31, 2002
(dollars in thousands)

After 1 After 5 Weighted
Within But Within But Within After Average
1 Year 5 Years 10 Years 10 Years Total Yield®
Securities held-to-maturity at amortized cost
Mortgage-backed securities .................. $ 383 $ 7,608 $ 6,625 $ 1,821 $ 16,437 6.17%
Obligations of U.S. agencies .. ................ 1,991 - - - 1,991 6.64
Obligations of states & political subdivisions .. .. 275 2,137 5,055 2,197 9,664 6.88
Other debt securities ....................... 100 - - - 100 6.00
2,749 0,745 11,680 4,018 28,192 6.45%
Securities available-for-sale at estimated fair value
Mortgage-backed securities ............... ... 8,673 55,639 16,622 21,671 102,605 551
Obligations of U.S. agencies .. ................ 3,042 92,517 - - 95,559 3.85
Obligations of states & political subdivisions .. .. 7,038 3,612 4,444 7,125 22219 5.07
18,753 151,768 21,066 28,796 220,383 4.79%
Total ..o $21,502 $161,513 $32,746 $32,814 $248,575
Weighted average vield” ...................... 3.78% 4.51% 6.15% 6.90% 4.91%
(1) Computed on a fully taxable equivalent basis using the corporate federal tax rate of 34%.
The following table sets forth the carrying value of the Company’s held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities portfolios
for the years ended December 31: (dollars in thousands)
2002 2001 2000
Amount % Amount % Amount %
Securities held-te-maturity
Mortgage-backed securities .................. $16,437 58.3% $22,201 57.1% $12,646 30.8%
Obligations of U.S. agencies .. ................ 1,991 7.1 5,977 15.4 15,161 37.0
Obligations of states & political subdivisions .. .. 9,664 343 9,855 253 12,813 312
Other debt securities ....................... 100 0.3 839 22 422 _10
$28,192 100.0% $38,872 100.0% $41,042 100.0%
Securities available-for-sale
Obligations of U.S. Treasury ................. - - $ 2017 1.3% $ 2,022 1.7%
Mortgage-backed securities .................. $102,604 45.7% 98,517 63.5 79,845 66.4
Obligations of U.S. agencies .. ................ 95,559 42.6 40,064 259 20,114 16.7
Obligations of states & political subdivisions .. .. 22,220 9.9 10,455 6.7 13,741 11.4
Other debt securities ....................... - - - - 620 05
Equity securities . ............. . .. .. ... 3,937 _18 397 _26 3,970 _33
$224,320 100.0% $155,030 100.0% $120,312 100.0%
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The Company’ total investment portfolio increased by $58.6
million, or 30.2%, to $252.5 million at December 31, 2002 as compared
to the prior year. Total gross unrealized gains and total gross unrealized
losses for the investment portfolio amounted to $8.0 million and $253
thousand, respectively, at December 31, 2002.

At December 31, 2002, available-for-sale (“AFS”) securities
amounted to $224.3 million, or 88.8%, of total securities, compared to
$155.0 million, or 80.0%, of total securities at year-end 2001. The
Company's AFS portfolio increased by $69.3 million, or 44.7%, to $224.3
million at December 31, 2002 as compared to the prior year due to the
purchase of securities. The composition of investment securities shifted
from mortgage-backed securities to obligations of U.S. Agencies mostly
due to market conditions and the Company’s asset/liability management
strategy. At December 31, 2002, collateralized mortgage obligations,
which are included in mortgage-backed securities, amounted to $94.4
million, an increase of $12.5 million, or 15.3%, over the prior year.
Substantially all of the mortgage-backed securities held by the Company
are issued or backed by U.S. federal agencies.

At December 31, 2002, the Company held no securities of a single
issuer (except U.S. federal agencies) with a book value that exceeds 10%
of Consolidated Stockholders’ Equity.

The Company’s held-to-maturity portfolic decreased by $10.7
million, or 27.5%, to $28.2 million at December 31, 2002 as compared
to the prior year. The decrease was mostly due to declines in mortgage-
backed securities and obligations of U.S. agencies which were largely
the result of amortization and maturities.

Table 11

Deposits

Deposits, which include non-interest-bearing demand deposits,
interest-bearing demand deposits, savings and time deposits, are an
essential and cost-effective funding source for the Company. The
Company attributes its success in growing deposits to the emphasis it
places on building core customer relationships. The Company offers a
variety of deposit products designed to meet the financial needs of the
customers based on identifiable “life stages”. Deposits increased $89.2
million, or 12.3%, to $815.7 million at December 31, 2002 as compared
to the prior year. For 2002, the Company's overall yield on deposits
decreased by 103 basis points to 2.09% due mostly to a decline in
market interest rates.

The growth in the deposit base occurred mostly in interest-bearing
demand deposits and time deposits. Interest-bearing demand deposits,
which comprised the largest segment of the Company’s total deposits,
amounted to $324.0 million at December 31, 2002, an increase of
$41.8 million, or 14.8%, from year-end 2001. The Company’s yield on
interest-bearing demand deposits decreased by 91 basis points to 1.88%
for 2002 as compared to 2001. Time deposits increased $22.2 million,
or 10.3%, to $237.4 million at December 31, 2002 as compared to the
prior year. Time deposits represented 29.1% of total deposits at
December 31, 2002 and 29.6% at December 31, 2001. The Company’s
yield on total time deposits decreased by 172 basis points to 3.85% for
2002 as compared to 2001.

Contributing to the growth in deposits and positively impacting
the overall yield on deposit liabilities was a $9.2 million, or 8.4%,
increase in non-interest bearing demand at December 31, 2002 as
compared to year-end 2001.

Deposit Summary

at December 31,
(dollars in thousands)

2002 2001 2000

Non-interest bearing demand . .............. $118,578 14.5% $109 416 15.1% $107,702 16.1%
Interest bearing demand . .................. 323,998 39.7 282173 388 220713 343
Money market .......... .. .. .. ... ... 55,372 6.8 47,569 6.5 56,646 8.5
Savings .. ... 80,300 9.8 72,092 9.9 66,270 9.9
Time deposits less than $100,000 ........... 210,727 25.9 194,754 26.9 187,330 28.0
Time deposits greater than $100,000 ......... 26,697 33 20,479 28 21,199 32

100.0% $726,483 100.0% $668,860 100.0%

'$815,672

The following table shows the time remaining to maturity of time certificates of

deposit of $100,000 or more as of December 31, 2002:

(in thousands)

Three monthsorless ..................... $ 23,301
Over three months through six months ... .. .. 625
Over six months through twelve months ... ... 1,106
Overtwelvemonths . ..................... 1,665

$26,697

Marhket Risk

Market risk is generally described as the sensitivity of income to
adverse changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, com-
modity prices, and other relevant market rates or prices. Market rate sensi-
tive instruments include: financial instruments such as investments, loans,
mortgage-backed securities, deposits, borrowings and other debt obliga-
tions; derivative financial instruments, such as futures, forwards, swaps
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and options; and derivative commodity instruments, such as commodity
futures, forwards, swaps and options that are permitted to be settled in
cash or another financial instrument.

The Company does not have any material exposure to foreign curren-
cy exchange rate risk or commodity price risk. The Company did not enter
into any market rate sensitive instruments for trading purposes nor did it




engage in any trading or hedging transactions utilizing derivative financial
instruments during 2002. The Company’ real estate loan portfolio, con-
centrated primarily in northern New Jersey, is subject to risks associated
with the local and regional economies. The Company’s primary source

of market risk exposure arises from changes in market interest rates
(“interest rate risk™).

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is generally described as the exposure to potentially
adverse changes in current and future net interest income resulting from:
fluctuations in interest rates; product spreads; and imbalances in the repric-
ing opportunities of interest-rate-sensitive assets and liabilities. Therefore,
managing the Company’s interest rate sensitivity is a primary objective of
the Company's senior management. The Company's Asset/Liability
Committee (“ALCO”) is responsible for managing the exposure to changes
in market interest rates. ALCO attempts to maintain stable net interest
margins by periodically evaluating the relationship between interest-rate-
sensitive assets and liabilities. The evaluation, which is performed at least
quarterly and presented to the Board, attempts to determine the impact on
net interest margin from current and prospective changes in market interest
rates.

The Company manages interest rate risk exposure with the utilization
of financial modeling and simulation techniques. These methods assist the
Company in determining the effects of market rate changes on net interest
income and future economic value of equity. The objective of the
Company is to maximize net interest income within acceptable levels of
risk established by policy. The techniques utilized for managing exposure
to market rate changes involve a variety of interest rate, pricing and volume
assumptions. These assumptions include projections on growth, prepay-
ment and withdrawal levels as well as other embedded options inherently
found in financial instruments. The Company reviews and validates these
assumptions at least annually, or more frequently if economic or other con-
ditions change. At December 31, 2002, the Company simulated the effects
on net interest income given an instantaneous and parallel shift in the yield
curve of up to a 200 basis point rising interest rate environment and a 100
basis point declining interest rate environment. Based on the simulation, it
was estimated that net interest income, over a twelve-month horizon,
would not decrease by more than 4.4%. At December 31, 2002, the
Company was within policy limits established for changes in net interest
income and future economic value of equity.

The following table sets forth the sensitivity results for the last two years:

Net Interest Income Sensitivity Simulation

Percentage Change in Estimated Net Interest
Income over a twelve month horizon

2002 2001
+200 basis points .. ....... -4.4% -10.5%
+100 basis points .. .... ... 0.2% -4.9%
-100 basis points ......... -2.% -0.6%
-200 basis points ......... * 2.1%

*Not simulated due to the historically low interest rate environment.
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The simulation described above does not represent a Company
forecast and should not be relied upon as being indicative of expected oper-
ating results. These hypothetical estimates are based upon numerous
assumptions including: the nature and timing of interest rate levels includ-
ing yield curve shape; prepayments on loans and securities; deposit decay
rates; pricing decisions on loans and deposits; reinvestment/ replacement of
asset and liability cashflows; and others. While assumptions are developed
based upon current economic and local market conditions, the Company
cannot make any assurances as to the predictive nature of these assump-
tions including how customer preferences or competitor influences

might change.

Further, as market conditions vary from those assumed in the simula-
tion, actual results will also differ due to: prepayment/refinancing
levels deviating from those assumed; the varying impact of interest rate
changes on caps or floors on adjustable rate assets; the potential effect
of changing debt service levels on customers with adjustable rate loans;
depositor early withdrawals and product preference changes; and other
internal/external variables. Furthermore, the simulation does not reflect
actions that ALCO might take in response to anticipated changes in
interest rates or competitive conditions in the market place.

In addition to the above-mentioned techniques, the Company
utilizes sensitivity gap analysis as an interest rate risk measurement.
Sensitivity gap is determined by analyzing the difference between the
amount of interest-earning assets maturing or repricing within a specific
time period and the amount of interest bearing liabilities maturing or
repricing within that same period of time. Sensitivity gap analysis provides
an indication of the extent to which the Company’s net interest income
may be affected by future changes in market interest rates. The curmulative
gap position expressed as a percentage of total assets provides one relative
measure of the Company?s interest rate exposure.

The cumulative gap between the Company’s interest-rate-sensitive
assets and its interest-rate-sensitive liabilities repricing within a one-year
period was a negative 9.66% at December 31, 2002. Since the cumulative
gap was negative, the Company has a “negative gap” position, which theo-
retically will cause its assets to reprice more slowly than its deposit liabili-
ties. In a declining interest rate environment, interest costs may be expect-
ed to fall faster than the interest received on earning assets, thus increasing
the net interest spread. If interest rates increase, a negative gap means that
the interest received on earning assets may be expected to increase more
slowly than the interest paid on the Company’ liabilities therefore decreas-
ing the net interest spread.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of gap analysis pre-
sented in Table 12. Although certain assets and liabilities may have similar
maturities or periods of repricing, they may react in different degrees to
changes in market interest rates. The rates on certain types of assets and
liabilities may fluctuate in advance of changes in market rates, while rates
on other types of assets and liabilities may lag behind changes in market
rates. In the event of a change in interest rates, prepayment and early with-
drawal levels could deviate significantly from those assumed in calculating
the table. The ability of borrowers to service debt may decrease in the
event of an interest rate increase. Management considers these factors
when reviewing its sensitivity gap position and establishing its ongoing
asset/liability strategy.




Table 12

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis

at December 31, 2002

(dollars in thousands) Non-
3 6 6 Mos. to 1to3 305 Over interest
Subject to rate change within Months Months 1 Year Years Years 5 Years  Sensitive Total
Assets
Netloans .......................... $155,296  $42561  $79.824  $203,601 $94,724  $36,056  $ (3,628) $608,434
Investment securities ................ 36,822 23,095 30,801 97,879 46,941 10,577 6,397 252,512
Cash and amounts due from banks ...... 10,650 - - - - - 23,266 33916
Other noninterest earning assets ........ - - 21,274 - - - 20,196 41,470
Totalassets ...................... 202,768 65,656 131,899 301,480 141,665 46,633 46,231  $936,332
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Demand deposits .................... 67,231 45,028 90,058 118,062 58,975 63,222 - $442576
Money market accounts . .............. 11,832 7,683 15,367 11,018 5,093 4379 55,372
Savings deposits . . ................ .., 7,026 7,026 14,052 36,094 11,134 4,968 80,300
Fixed maturity certificates of deposits .... 88,607 65,329 54,157 25,538 3,793 - 237 424
Securities sold under agreements
torepurchase ..................... 5,390 4,000 8,000 - - - - 17,390
Long-term borrowings ................ - - - - 10,000 - - 10,000
Other liabilites ..................... - - - - - 12,590 12,590
Stockholders' equity . ................. - - - - - - 80,680 80,680
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . 180,086 129,066 181,634 190,712 88,995 72,569 03,270  $936,332
Gap $ 22682  $(63410) $(49,735) $110,768 $52,670  $(25,936)  $(47,039)
Gaptototalassets ..................... 2.42% (6.77)% (3.31)% 11.83% 5.63% 2.77%
Cumulative Gap ...................... $ 22,682  5(40,728) $(90,463) $ 20,305 $72975  $ 47,039
Cumulative Gap to total assets . . . ......... 242% (4.35)% (9.66)% 217% 7.79% 5.02%

Liquidity

A fundamental component of the Company’s business strategy is to
manage liquidity to ensure the availability of sufficient resources to meet
all financial obligations and to finance prospective business opportunities.
Liquidity management is critical to the stability of the Company. The
liquidity position of the Company over any given period of time
is a product of its operating, financing and investing activities. The
extent of such activities is often shaped by such external factors as
competition for deposits and loan demand.

Traditionally, financing for the Company’s loans and investments is
derived primarily from deposits, along with interest and principal pay-
ments on loans and investments. At December 31, 2002, total deposits
amounted to $815.7 million, an increase of $89.2 million, or 12.3%, over
the prior comparable year. At December 31, 2002, advances from the
FHLB, overnight borrowings and securities sold under agreements to
repurchase totaled $27.4 million and represented 2.9% of total assets as
compared to $24.8 million and 3.9% of total assets, at December 31,
2001.

Loan production continued to be the Company’s principal investing
activity. Net loans at December 31, 2002 amounted to $608.4 million, an
increase of $33.7 million, or 5.9%, compared to the same period in 2001.

The Company’s most liquid assets are cash and due from banks
and federal funds sold. At December 31, 2002, the total of such assets
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amounted to $33.9 million, or 3.6%, of total assets, compared to $22.2
million, or 2.7%, of total assets at year-end 2001. The increase in liquid
assets, principally federal funds sold, was driven by the growth in
deposits.

Another significant liquidity source is the Company’ available-
for-sale securities. At December 31, 2002, available-for-sale securities
amounted to $224.3 million, or 88.8%, of total securities, compared
to $155.9 million, or 80.0%, of total securities at year-end 2001.

In addition to the aforementioned sources of liquidity, the Company
has available various other sources of liquidity, including federal funds
purchased from other banks and the Federal Reserve discount window.
The Bank also has a $86.3 million line of credit available through its
membership in the FHLB.

The Company maintains a policy of paying regular cash dividends
and anticipates continuing that policy. The Company could, if necessary,
modify the amount or frequency of dividends as an additional source
of liquidity. There are imposed dividend restrictions on the Bank. See
Note 17 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for additional
information.

Management believes that the Company’s sources of funds are
sufficient to meet its present funding requirements.



The following table sets forth contractual obligations and various commitments representing required and potential cash flows as of December 31, 2002:

Table 13

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

at December 31, 2002
(dollars in thousands)

Contractual Obligations

Payment due by Period
Total
Less than One to Four to After Amounts
one year three years five years five years Committed
Minimum annual rental under
non-cancelable operating leases .............. ... .. $ 1,630 $ 2,768 $ 2,073 $5,280 $ 11,751
Remaining contractual maturities of time deposits . ... ... 208,058 25572 3,794 - 237,424
Borrowed funds® ............ ... .. ... ... 17,390 - 10,000 - 27,390
Total contractual cash obligations . ... .............. $227,078 $28,340 $15,867 $5,280 $276,565

(a) See Note 9 Securities Sold Under Agreements to Purchase and Short-term Borrowings and Note 10 Long-term Borrowings for further information.

QOther Commitments

Amount of Commitment Expiration By Period

Total
Less than One to Four to After Amounts
one year three years five years five years Committed
Loan commitments . ...........couuuuennunannn... $25,893 $1,885 - $126,724 $154,502
Standby letters of credit . ............. L 1,090 37 - - 1,127
Total other commitments ... ..................... $26,983 $1,922 - $126,724 $155,629

Capital Adequacy

Stockholders’ equity totaled $80.7 million, or 8.6%, of total assets at
December 31, 2002, compared to $68.2 million, or 8.2%, of total assets
at December 31, 2001, The $12.5 million growth was largely attributa-
ble to net income and increases in other comprehensive income of $12.9
million and $2.4 million, respectively. The increase was offset in part by
cash dividends of $4.3 million during 2002.

Guidelines issued by the Federal Reserve Board and the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) establish capital adequacy
guidelines for bank holding companies and state-chartered banks. The
guidelines establish a risk-based capital framework consisting of (1) a
definition of capital and (2) a system for assigning risk weights. Capital
consists of Tier 1 capital, which includes common stockholders’ equity
less certain intangibles, and a supplementary component called Tier 2
capital, which includes a portion of the allowance for loan and lease
losses. Effective October 1, 1998, the Federal Reserve Board and the
FDIC adopted an amendment to their risk-based capital guidelines that
permits insured depository institutions to include in their Tier 2 capital
up to 45% of the pre-tax net unrealized gains on certain available-for-
sale equity securities. All assets and off-balance-sheet items are assigned
to one of four weighted risk categories ranging from 0% to 100%.
Higher levels of capital are required for the categories perceived as repre-
senting greater risks. An institution’s risk-based capital ratio is deter-
mined by dividing its qualifying capital by its risk-weighted assets. The
guidelines make regulatory capital requirements more sensitive to differ-
ences in risk profiles among banking institutions, take off-balance sheet
items into account in assessing capital adequacy and minimize the disin-
centive to holding liquid, low-risk assets. Banking organizations are

generally expected to operate with capital positions well above the mini-
mum rates. Institutions with higher levels of risk, or which experience
or anticipate significant growth, are also expected to operate well above
minimum capital standards. At December 31, 2002, the Company's

and the Bank’s Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio was 12.16 % and 11.84%,
espectively, well in excess of minimum capital standards.

These guidelines focus principally on broad categories of credit
risk, although the framework for assigning assets and off-balance sheet
items to risk categories does incorporate elements of transfer risk. The
risk-based capital ratio does not, however, incorporate other factors that
may affect a company’ financial condition, such as overall interest rate
exposure, liquidity, funding and market risks, the quality and level of
earnings, investment or loan concentrations, the quality of loans and
investments, the effectiveness of loan and investment policies and man-
agement's ability to monitor and control financial and operating risks.

In addition to the risk-based guidelines discussed above, the
Federal Reserve Board and the FDIC require that a bank holding compa-
ny and bank which meet the regulators’ highest performance and opera-
tion standards and which are not contemplating or experiencing signifi-
cant growth maintain a minimum leverage ratio (Tier 1 capital as a per-
cent of quarterly average adjusted assets) of 3%. For those financial
institutions with higher levels of risk or that are experiencing or antici-
pating significant growth, the minimum leverage ratio will be increased.
At December 31, 2002, the Company’s and the Bank’s leverage ratio was
8.12% and 7.92%, respectively.
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Effects of Inflation and Changing Prices

The financial statements and related financial data presented herein
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America within the banking industry,
which require the measurement of financial position and operating results
in terms of historical dollars without considering changes in the relative
purchasing power of money over time due to inflation.

Unlike most industrial companies, virtually all of the assets and
liabilities of a financial institution are monetary in nature. As a result,
interest rates have a more significant impact on a financial institution's
performance than do general levels of inflation. Interest rates do not neces-
sarily move in the same magnitude as the prices of goods and services.

Off Balance Sheet Avrangements

Asnoted in Note 1 of the Consolidated Financial Statements on
page 35, the Company’s policy is to consolidate majority-owned sub-
sidiaries that it controls. The Company does not dispose of troubled
loans or problem assets by means of unconsolidated special purpose
entities, use off-balance sheet entities to fund its business operations nor
capitalize any off-balance sheet entity with the Company’s stock. In the
ordinary course of business, the Company originates and sells commercial
leases and other financial assets, such as mortgage loans, to the secondary
market. Exposure to loan commitments and letters of credit can be found
in Table 13 under Liquidity.

Critical Accounting Policies and Judgments

The Company’s consolidated financial statements are prepared based
on the application of certain accounting policies, the most significant of
which are described in Note 1 Accounting Policies in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. Certain of these policies require
numerous estimates and strategic or economic assumptions that may
prove inaccurate or subject to variations and may significantly affect the
Company’s reported results and financial position for the period or in
future periods. The use of estimates, assumptions, and judgments are
necessary when financial assets and liabilities are required to be recorded
at, or adjusted to reflect, fair value. Assets and liabilities carried at
fair value inherently result in more financial statement volatility. Fair
values and the information used to record valuation adjustments for
certain assets and liabilities are based on either quoted market prices or
are provided by other independent third-party sources, when available.
When such information is not available, management estimates valuation
adjustments primarily by using internal cash flow and other financial
modeling techniques. Changes in underlying factors, assumptions, or
estimates in any of these areas could have a material impact on the
Company’s future financial condition and results of operations.

Allowance for Logn and Lease Losses: The allowance for loan and
lease losses (“ALLL”) is established through periodic charges to income.
Loan losses are charged against the ALLL when management believes that
the future collection of principal is unlikely. Subsequent recoveries, if any,
are credited to the ALLL. If the ALLL is considered inadequate to absorb
future loan losses on existing loans, based on, but not limited to, increases
in the size of the loan portfolio, increases in charge-offs or changes in the
risk characteristics of the loan portfolio, then the provision for loan and
lease losses is increased.
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The Company considers the ALLL of $7.2 million adequate to cover
estimated losses inherent in the loan portfolio, loan commitments and
standby and other letters of credit that may become uncollectible based
on managements evaluations of the size and current risk characteristics
of the loan and lease portfolio as of the balance sheet date. The evaluations
consider such factors as changes in the composition and volume of
the loan portfolio, the impact of changing economic conditions on the
credit worthiness of the borrowers, review of specific problem loans
and managements assessment of the inherent risk and overall quality
of the loan portfolio.

See the following for additional information: Financial Condition
Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses and Related Provision; Note 1.
Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies;
and Note 6. Allowance For Loan and Lease Losses.

Pensions Plans: The Bank maintains a qualified defined benefit pen-
sion plan (the “Pension Plan”), which covers all eligible employees and
an unfunded supplemental pension plan which provides retirement
income to all eligible employees who would have been paid amounts in
excess of the amounts provided by the Pension Plan but for limitations
under the qualified Pension Plan. In addition, the Company has an
unfunded retirement plan for all directors of the Bank who are not
employees of the Company or any subsidiary or affiliate.

Our expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is 8.0% and
was based on our expectations of the long-term return on the balanced
mutual fund that we invest our plan assets which has had a return for
the life of the fund of 8.17%. A 1.0% decrease in the long-term rate of
return on plan assets would have increased the net periodic pension
cost of the Pension Plan by approximately $15,000.

The discount rate that we utilize of 6.50% for determining future
pension obligations is based on a review of long-term bonds that receive
one of the two highest ratings given by a recognized rating agency. A
1.0% decrease in the discount rate would have increased the net periodic
pension cost by approximately $86,000.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)
issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets,” which replaces SFAS No. 121. This statement primarily
defines one accounting model for long-lived assets to be disposed of by
sale, including discontinued operations, and addresses implementation
issues regarding the impairment of long-lived assets. The standard was
effective January 1, 2002 and did not have a material impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In April 2002, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 145, Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64,
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections (“SFAS
145”). SFAS 145 rescinds FASB Statement No. 4, Reporting Gains and
Losses from Extinguishment of Debt, and an amendment of that Statement
and FASB Statement No. 64, Extinguishments of Debt Made to Satisfy
Sinking-Fund Requirements. SFAS 145 also rescinds FASB Statement No.
44, Accounting for Intangible Assets of Motor Carriers. SFAS 145 amends
FASB Statement No. 13, Accounting for Leases, to eliminate an inconsisten-
cy between the required accounting for sale-leaseback transactions and the




required accounting for certain lease modifications that have economic
effects that are similar to sale-leaseback transactions. SFAS 145 also
amends other existing authoritative pronouncements to make various tech-
nical cotrections, to clarify meanings or to describe their applicability
under changed conditions. The provisions of SFAS 145 relating to the
rescission of FASB Statement No. 4 are effective for fiscal years beginning
after May 15, 2002, and the provisions of SFAS 145 relating to FASB
Statement No. 13 are effective for transactions occurring after May 15,
2002. All other provisions of SFAS 145 are effective for financial state-
ments issued on or after May 15, 2002. The adoption of SFAS 145 did not
have a material effect on the consolidated financial condition or results of
operations of the Company.

In July 2002, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities (“SFAS 146”). SFAS 146 requires companies to recognize costs
associated with exit or disposal activities when they are incurred rather
than at the date of a commitment to an exit or disposal plan. SFAS 146
replaces Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 94-3, Liability Recognition
for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an
Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring). SFAS 146
is to be applied prospectively to exit or disposal activities initiated after
December 31, 2002.

In October 2002, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No, 147 “Acquisitions of Certain Financial Institutions” (“SFAS
1477), which provides guidance on the accounting for the acquisitions of a
financial institution.  SFAS 147 requires that the excess of the fair value of
liabilities assumed over the fair value of tangible and identifiable intangible
assets acquired in a business combination represents goodwill that should
be accounted for under FASB Statement No. 142, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets. Thus, the specialized accounting guidance in paragraph
5 of FASB Statement No. 72, Accounting for Certain Acquisitions of
Banking or Thrift Institutions, does not apply after September 30, 2002.

If certain criteria in Statement 147 are met, the amount of the unidentifi-
able intangible asset will be reclassified to goodwill. Financial institutions
meeting conditions outlined in Statement 147 are required to restate previ-
ously issued financial statements as if the amount accounted for under
Statement 72 as an unidentifiable intangible asset had been reclassified

to goodwill as of the date Statement 142 was initially applied. SFAS No.
147 became effective October 1, 2002 and did not have a material

impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

On November 25, 2002, the FASB issued Financial Accounting
Standards Board Interpretation No. 45 (“FIN 45" or the “Interpretation”),
“Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees,
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Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others, an interpretation
of FASB Statements No, 5, 57, and 107 and Rescission of FASB
Interpretation No. 34.” FIN 45 clarifies the requirements of FASB
Staternent No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies,” relating to the guaran-
tor's accounting for, and disclosure of, the issuance of certain types of guar-
antees. FIN 45 requires that upon issuance of a guarantee, the entity (i.e.,
the guarantor) must recognize a liability for the fair value of the obligation
it assumes under that guarantee. The disclosure provisions of the
Interpretation are effective for financial statements of interim or annual
periods that end after December 15, 2002. The Interpretation’s provisions
for initial recognition and measurement should be applied on a prospective
basis to guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002, irrespec-
tive of the guarantor’ fiscal year-end. The guarantor’s previous accounting
for guarantees that were issued before the date of FIN 45% initial applica-
tion may not be revised or restated to reflect the effect of the recognition
and measurement provisions of the Interpretation. See Note 18
Commitments and Contingent Liabilities for the disclosures

currently required under FIN 45.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 148 (“SFAS 148”), “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation - Transition and Disclosure.” SFAS 148 amends
FASB Statement No. 123 (“SFAS 123"), “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,” to provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary
change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based
employee compensation. In addition, SFAS 148 amends the disclosure
requirements of SFAS 123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual
and interim financial statements of the method of accounting for stock-
based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on report-
ed results. SFAS 148 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December
15, 2002. The Company does not expect to adopt the fair value based
method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation; therefore,
adoption of SFAS 148 is expected to impact only the future disclosures,
not the financial results, of the Company.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46,
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities - an Interpretation of ARB 51
(“FIN 46”). FIN 46 provides guidance on the consolidation of entities in
which equity investors do not have characteristics of a controlling financial
interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its
activities without additional subordinated financial support from other par-
ties. FIN 46 is effective immediately for entities created before February 1,
2003 no later than the beginning of the first interim or annual reporting
period beginning after June 15, 2003. As of December 31, 2002, the
Company does not have any interests in variable interest entities.



Forward Looking Statements

In addition to discussing historical information, certain statements
included in or incorporated into this report relating to the financial condi-
tion, results of operations and business of the Company which are not his-
torical facts may be deemed “forward-looking statements” within the
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. When

» W« N« » &

used herein, the words “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “will"
and other similar expressions (including when preceded or followed by
the word "not") are generally intended to identify such forward-looking
statements. Such statements are intended to be covered by the safe harbor
provisions for forward-looking statements contained in such Act, and we
are including this statement for purposes of invoking these safe harbor
provisions. Such forward-looking statements include, but are not limited
to, statements about the operations of the Company, the adequacy of the
Company’s allowance for losses associated with the loan portfolio, the
quality of the loan portfolio, the prospects of continued loan and deposit
growth, and improved credit quality. The forward-looking statements in
this report involve certain estimates or assumptions, known and unknown
risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond the control of the
Company, and reflect what we currently anticipate will happen in each

case. What actually happens could differ materially from what we current-

ly anticipate will happen due to a variety of factors, including, among oth-
ers, (i) increased competitive pressures among financial services compa-
nies; (ii) changes in the interest rate environment, reducing interest mar-
gins or increasing interest rate risk; (iii) deterioration in general economic
conditions, internationally, nationally, or in the State of New Jersey; (iv)
the occurrence of acts of terrorism, such as the events of September 11,
2001, or acts of war; (v) legislation or regulatory requirements or changes
adversely affecting the business of the Company; (vi) losses in the
Company's leasing subsidiary exceeding management's expectations; and
(vii) other risks detailed in reports filed by the Company with the
Securities and Exchange Commission. Readers should not place undue
expectations on any forward-looking statements. We are not promising
to make any public announcement when we consider forward-looking
statements in this document to be no longer accurate, whether as a

result of new information, what actually happens in the future or for

any other reason.

29

Table 14

Quarterly Commeon Steck Price Range
for the years ended December 31,

The Company’s common stock is quoted on the Nasdaq National Market
System under the symbol “IFC].” There are imposed dividend restrictions
on the Bank. See Note 17 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement
for additional information.

High Low Cash
Sales Sales Dividends
Price Price Declared
2001
First quarter . .......... $12.59 $9.17 $0.090
Second quarter ......... 1223 9.96 0.090
Third quarter ... ....... 12.41 11.57 0.090
Fourth quarter ......... 1315 11.70 0.090
2002
First quarter .......... $16.23 $12.47 $0.100
Second quarter ... ... .. 19.27 16.23 0.160
Third guarter ......... 18.67 15.70 0.100
Fourth guarter ........ 19.10 15.95 0.140

The number of stockholders of record as of February 19, 2003 was 1,117.

All per share data was restated to reflect a 3-for-2 stock split declared on
May 23, 2002 and paid on July 12, 2002.



Independent Auditors’ Report

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Interchange Financial Services Corporation
Saddle Brook, New Jersey

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
of Interchange Financial Services Corporation and subsidiaries (the
"Company") as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 and the related consoli-
dated statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002.
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assur-
ance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstate-
ment. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant esti-
mates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion,
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In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of Interchange Financial
Services Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002 and 2001
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2002, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Dgwmg + T ovene LLP

New York, New York
January 22, 2003



Interchange Firancial Services Corporation

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,
(dollars in thousands)

Assets

Cashand due from banks . . .. ... ..
Federal fundssold . ... .. .

Securities held-to-maturity at amortized cost (estimated fair value

of $29,590 and $39,580 for 2002 and 2001, respectively) . ............ ... .. ... ... ...

Securities available-for-sale at estimated of fair value (amortized cost

of $217,924 and $152,935 for 2002 and 2001, respectively) . . ... ......... i

Loans and leases (net of unearned income and deferred fees of $8,657 and $6,931

for 2002 and 2001, respectively) . ... .. ... .. ..
Less: Allowance for loan and lease losses . . ......... . ... ... ...
Netloansand leases .. ... ... .. i i

Bank owned life insurance .. ... ...
Premises and equipment, BEL . . ... ...ttt e
Foreclosed assets and other repossessed assets . ......... ...t
Goodwill ...
Intangible assets . ... ... ...
Accrued interest receivable and otherassets ... ... ... .. . o o
Total @ssets . . ... ... ... ..

Liabilities
Deposits

Non-interest bearing . ... ... i
Interest bearing ... ... ...
Total deposits . . ..ot e

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase ........ ... ... ..ol
Short-term BOTIOWINES . . ... .o
Long-term BOTTOWINGS .. ... ... .
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities ....... ... ... ... ... .o oo
Total liabilities . ... ... ... .. ...

Commitments and contingent liabilities

Stockholdezs’ equity:
Common stock, without par value; 22,500,000 shares authorized; 9,815,207 and 9,690,651 shares
issued and outstanding for 2002 and 2001, respectively . ..... ... ... ... .. L
Capital SUIPIUS . . ..ot
Retained earnings . ... ... .
Accumulated other comprehensive income .. ... ... ..o
Less: Treasury stock .. ... . e
Total stockholders' equity ....... ... ... .. ...
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . ....... ... ... .. .. ... ... .. il

2002

$ 23,266
10,650
33,616

2001

$ 22,211

22,211

38,872

155,030

581,323
6,569
574,754

15,378
10,235
492

13,977
$830,949

$109,416
617,067
726,483

6,700
18,100

11,433
762,716

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Interchange Financial Services Corporation

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands, except per share data)

Imterest income

Interest on loans and leases

Interest on federal funds sold

Interest and dividends on securities
Taxable interest income
Interest income exempt from federal income taxes
Dividends

Imterest expense

Interest on deposits

Interest on securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Interest on short-term borrowings

Interest on long-term borrowings

Total interest expense

Net interest income
Provision for loan and lease losses

Net interest income after provision for loan and lease losses

Non-interest income

Service fees on depositaccounts ...... ... ..
Net gain on sale of securities .......... . .. .. .
Net gain on sale of loans and leases . . . ................... ... ... .. ...
Bank owned life insurance .......... ...
Commissions on sale of annuities and muwal funds . .........................
Other ..
Total non-imeerest fMCOMIE . ... .. ... ..t e

Non-interest expense

Salaries and benefits ........ ... ... .
OCCUPANCY ... o
Furniture and eqUipment .............. .ottt
Advertising and promotion . ....... ... ..
Foreclosed real estate .. ......... ... .. . i
Amortization of intangibleassets . . ........ .. ..o
Other o
Total non-IMierest eXPemSe . ... ... ...t e

Income before iNCOme taxes .. ...
INCOMIE tAXES . . oottt e
N I OIIIe . . ..o e e e

Basic earnings per commonshare ... ... . ... ... ..ol

Diluted earmings per common share . . ............ ... ... o

2002

$45,343
246

10,123
599
189

2001

$46,175
557

9,890
532
248

57,402

22,070
526
848

23 444

2000

$44,329

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

All per share data and average shares were restated to reflect a 3-for-2 stock split declared on May 23, 2002 and paid on July 12, 2002.
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Interchange Financial Services Corporation

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

For the Twelve Months Ended December 31,
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive  Retained Comprehensive ~Common Capital Treasury
Income Earnings Income Stock Surplus Stock Total
Balance at January 1,2000 ............. ... ..., $41,741 $ (675) $5,397 $21,244  $ (9,431) $58,276
Comprehensive income
NetIncome ............ccoriiiiiiiiiii.. $ 9,256 9,256 9,256
Other comprehensive income, net of taxes
Unrealized gains on AFS debt securities ....... 1,262
Less: realized gains on disposition
of equity securities . ............ ... . ... (61)
Other comprehensive income .. ................ 1,201 1,201 1,201
Comprehensive income ........................ $10,457
Dividends on common stock .................... (3,262) (3,262)
Issued 17,109 shares of common stock in connection
with Executive Compensation Plan ............. {6) 196 190
Exercised 24,951 option shares .................. (161) 281 120
Purchased 338,460 shares of common stock ........ (3,797) (3,797)
Balance at December 31,2000 ................... 47,735 526 5,397 21,077 (12,751) 61,984
Comprehensive income
NetIncome .............. .. ... ...cooi.n.. $10,540 10,540 10,540
Other comprehensive income, net of taxes
Unrealized gains on AFS debt securities .. ... ... 602
Add: realized losses on disposition of securities . . 28
Other comprehensive income, net of taxes . . ... ... 630 630 630
Comprehensive income ........................ $11,170
Dividends on common stock .......... . ... .. ... (3,517) (3,517)
Issued 22,320 shares of common stock in connection
with Executive Compensation Plan ............. 14) 255 241
Exercised 13,226 optionshares .................. (70) 152 82
Purchased 140,643 shares of common stock ........ (1,727) (1,727)
Balance at December 31,2001 ................ ... 54,758 1,156 5,397 20,993 (14,071) 68,233
Comprehensive income
NetIncome ............... .. ..., $12,877 12,877 12,877
Other comprehensive income, net of taxes
Unrealized gains on AFS debt securities ... .. ... 3,037
Less: realized gains on disposition of securities . . (597)
Other comprehensive income ... ............... 2,440 2,440 2,440
Comprehensive income ., ...................... $15317
Dividends on common stock .................... (4,321) (4321)
Issued 21,069 shares of common stock in connection
with Executive Compensation Plan ......... ..., 66 244 310
Exercised 25,158 option shares .................. 93) 291 198
Issued 107,877 shares of common stock in
connection with the acquisition of certain assets
and assumption of certain liabilities of Monarch
Capital Corporation ......................... 131 1,244 1375
Purchased 29,550 shares of common stock ......... (432) (432)
Balance at December 31,2002 ................. $63,314 $3,596 $5,397 $21,097 $(12,724) $80,680

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Imterchange Financial Services Corporation

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities

Netincome ........... i

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization .............c..oiiiiiiiiii
Amortization of securities Premitms . . . ...t
Accretion of securities discounts .. ....... .. Lo i
Amortization of premiums in connection with acquisition . ........... ... ...
Increase in cash surrender value of Bank Owned Life Insurance ...............
Provision for loan and lease losses . ... ........... .. ... o L
Net gain on sale of loansandleases .......... .. .. ... ... ... o
Net gain on sale of securities . .......... ... ... o
Net gain on sale of foreclosed real estate ........... .. ... ... ... .. .. ...

Decrease (increase) in operating assets
Accrued interest receivable ... ... . o
Deferred taxes .. ...t
Accounts receivable- leasessold ... .
Other ...

Decrease (increase) in operating liabilities
Accrued interestpayable . ... ...
Other . .o

Cask provided by operating activities ............... ... . ... . ... ...

Cash flows from investing activities

(Payments for) proceeds from
Net originations of loans and leases . . . ......... ... ... .. .. . oo il
Purchase of loans and leases ... ........ .. ... . .. ... . . . .. i
Sale of loans and leases . ...
Purchase of AFS securities . . ... ... ...
Maturities of AFS securities . . ... ... it
Sale of AFS SeCUTIHES ...\ \ vttt e
Sale of foreclosed real estate .......... ... ... . .
Purchase of HTM SeCUrities . . .. ..ottt e
Maturities of HTM securities .. ...ttt e
Sale of HTM seCUTIties . . . . ..ot e e e e
Purchase of Bank Owned Life Insurance . ................................
Purchase of fixed assets . . ........ ...
Sale of repossessed @SSELS . . ...
Sale of fixed assets . .. .. ..o
Premium in connection with acquisition ............... ... .. oL

Cash used in investing activities .. ......... ... ... . ...,

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from (payments for)
Deposits in excess of withdrawals . ... ... ... ... oL
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase and other borrowings . ..........
Retirement of securities sold under agreement to repurchase and other borrowings .
Dividends .. ... ...
Common stockissued ........ ... ..
Treasury Stock . ... .o
Exercise of option shares ........ .. . . i il

Cash provided by financing activities activities . . .. ........... ... .. ... ..

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents ..................... ...
Cash and cash equivalents, begining of year ........ ... ... . ... ... ...,
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ............... . ... ... .. ... ... ..

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid for:
Interest ... ..
INCOME LAXES . .. .ot

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing activities:
Loans transferred to foreclosed real estate and other repossessed assets ... .......
Stock issued for net assets purchased . ... ...... ... .. ..o

2002

$ 12,877

1,446
2,039
(303)
69
(8953)
1,500
{490)
(564)
(40)

(330)

4,821
(383)

(308)

1,467

21,094

(26,826)

(14,967)
6,603

(131,069)
43,219
21,867
280

8,481
2,023
(5,000)
(1,646)

476

gl,Mé)
(98,297)

$17,786
6,701

410
1375

2001

$10,540

1,486
1,044
(326)
81
(378)
1,075
(550)
(252)

443
(183)

(5337)
{478)

4,010

11,173

(15,303)
(18,760)
13,267
(99,767)
46,339
19,348

(18,548)
18,699
2,003
(15,000
(1,652)

1,260

(68,114

$23,922
1,409

242

2000

$9,256

1377
371
(297)
312

75(;
(136)
(313)

(396)

(186)

(789)
737

1,712

12,398

(38,030)
(13,548)
2,739
(55,687)
11,135
33,902

(11,479)
22,958
2,002

(2,122-)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Nature of Business and Summary of

Significant Accounting Policies

The following is a description of the business of Interchange
Financial Services Corporation (“Interchange”) and subsidiaries (collec-
tively, the “Company”) and its significant accounting and reporting
policies used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Nature of Business

Interchange, a New Jersey business corporation, is a registered bank
holding company under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1936, as
amended, whose principal subsidiary is Interchange Bank (the “Bank”),
a New Jersey state bank and member of the Federal Reserve System.
The Bark is principally engaged in the business of attracting commercial
and retail deposits and investing those funds into commercial business
and commercial mortgage loans as well as residential mortgage and
consumer loans. When available funding exceeds loan demand, the
Bank generally invests in debt securities. Currently, the Bank conducts
operations typical of a community bank in the northeast region of New
Jersey (primarily Bergen County). In addition, the Bank is engaged in
providing its customers a broad range of financial products and services,
such as equipment leasing, murual funds and annuities, brokerage
services, conventional insurance, internet banking and title insurance.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of consolidation: The accompanying consolidated
financial statements include the accounts of the Company, including
its direct and indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries and its indirect sub-
sidiary, Clover Leaf Management Realty Corporation, which is 99.0%
owned by the Bank. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles and practices
generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP").
Significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation. Certain prior period amounts have been
reclassified to conform with the financial statement presentation of 2002.

Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consoli-
dated financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. The most significant estimates pertain to the allowance
for loan and lease losses and the fair value of financial instruments.

Cash and cash equivalents: For the purposes of presentation in the
consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash on hand, amounts due from banks and federal funds sold, all of
which mature within ninety days.

Securities held-to-maturity and securities available for sale:
Debt securities purchased with the intent and ability to hold until matu-
rity are classified as securities held-to-maturity (“HTM”} and are carried
at cost, adjusted for the amortization of premiums and accretion of dis-
counts. Management determines whether the security will be classified
as held-to-maturity at the time of purchase.

All other securities, including equity securities, are classified as
securities available-for-sale (“AFS”). Securities classified as available-for-
sale may be sold prior to maturity in response to, but not limited to,

33

changes in interest rates, changes in prepayment risk or for asset/liability
management strategies. These securities are carried at fair value and any
unrealized gains and losses are reported, net of taxes, as a separate com-
ponent of stockholders’ equity (accumulated other comprehensive
income [loss]). The estimated fair value for securities are based on
quoted market prices, where available. If quoted market prices are not
available, estimated fair values are based on quoted market prices of
comparable instruments. Gains and losses from the sale of these securi-
ties are determined using the specific identification method and are
reported in non-interest income. The Company does not acquire securi-
ties for the purpose of engaging in trading activities.

Interest and dividends are accrued and credited to income as
earned. Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in interest
income using the interest method over the terms of the securities.

Loans and Leases: Generally, loans and leases (herein referred to
collectively as loans) are carried at the principal amounts outstanding,
net of unearned discount and deferred loan origination fees and costs.
Interest income is accrued and credited to income as earned.
QOrigination fees and certain direct loan origination costs are deferred
and amortized to interest income over the estimated life of the loan as
an adjustment to the yield. Mortgage loans held for sale are carried at
lower of aggregate cost or market value. Gains and losses on loans sold
are included in non-interest income. There were 1o loans held for sale
for 2002.

Direct finance leases have terms ranging from three to seven years.
Under direct finance lease accounting, the balance sheet includes the
gross minimum lease payments receivable, unguaranteed estimated
residual values of the leased equipment, and capitalized indirect costs,
reduced by unearned lease income. Income from syndicated leases are
included in non-interest income.

The lease residual values represent the expected proceeds from the
sale of leased equipment at the end of the term of the lease and are
determined on the basis of analyses prepared by the Bank’s equipment
leasing subsidiary, Interchange Capital Company L.L.C. (*ICC"), based
upon professional appraisals, historical experience and industry data.
Management reviews the estimated residual values on a periodic basis,
and impairments in value, if any, are recognized as an immediate charge
to income.

Loans are placed on nonaccrual status when, in the opinion of
management, the future collection of interest or principal according to
contractual terms may be doubtful or when principal or interest pay-
ments are in arrears 90 days or more. Amounts accrued are evaluated
for collectibility. Interest income on nonaccrual loans is recognized on
a cash basis, to the extent there is no doubt of the future collection of
principal. Loans are returned to accrual status when management deems
that collection of principal and interest is reasonable and probable.

Loans are considered impaired when, based on current
information and events, it is probable that the Bank will be unable
to collect all amounts due according to contractual terms of the loan
agreement. The collection of all amounts due according to contractual
terms means that both the contractual interest and principal payments
of a loan will be collected as scheduled in the loan agreement. All
nonaccrual commercial and commercial mortgage loans as well as
non-homogeneous one-to-four family residential mortgage loans
and consumer loans are considered impaired.




The impairment of a commercial loan is measured based on the
present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s
effective interest rate or, as a practical expedient, at the loan's observable
market price or the fair value of the underlying collateral. The fair value
of collateral, reduced by costs to sell on a discounted basis, is utilized if
a loan is collateral dependent or foreclosure is probable. One-to-four
family residential mortgage loans and consumer loans with small bal-
ances are pooled together as homogeneous loans and, accordingly, are
not covered by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”)
No. 114 “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan.”

A loan is categorized as a troubled debt restructure if a significant
concession to contractual terms is granted to the borrower due to deteri-
oration in the financial condition of the borrower. Generally, a nonaccru-
al loan that is restructured remains on nonaccrual until the obligation is
brought current and has performed for a period of time to demonstrate
that the borrower can meet the restructured terms. If the borrower abil-
ity to meet the revised payment schedule is uncertain, the loan remains
classified as nonaccrual loan.

Allowance for loan and lease losses: The allowance for loan and
lease losses (“ALLL") is established through periodic charges to income.
Loan losses are charged against the ALLL when management believes
that the future collection of principal is unlikely. Subsequent recoveries,
if any, are credited to the ALLL. If management considers the ALLL
inadequate to cover future loan losses on existing loans, based on, but
not limited to, increases in the size of the loan portfolio, increases in
charge-offs or changes in the risk characteristics of the loan portfolio,
then a provision is made to increase the ALLL.

The Company’s ALLL is an amount considered by management to
be adequate to cover estimated losses on existing loans and leases that
may become uncollectible based on management's evaluations of the size
and current risk characteristics of the loan and lease portfolio as of the
balance sheet date. The evaluations consider a number of factors such
as changes in the composition and volume of the loan portfolio, the
impact of changing economic conditions on the credit worthiness of the
borrowers, review of specific problem loans and managements assess-
ment of the inherent risk and overall quality of the loan portfolio.
Management considers the ALLL adequate to cover losses inherent in
loans, loan commitments and standby and other letters of credit as
of the balance sheet date.

Premises and equipment: Premises and equipment are stated at
cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and
amortization are computed using the straight-line method. Premises and
equipment are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
Leasehold improvements are amortized over the term of the lease, if
shorter. Estimated lives are 30 to 40 years for premises and 3 to 20
years for furniture and equipment. Maintenance and repairs are charged
to expenses as incurred, while renewals and major improvements are
capitalized.

Foreclosed assets: Foreclosed assets consist of real estate and other
repossessed assets and are carried at the lower of cost or estimated fair
value, less estimated selling costs, at time of foreclosure ot repossession.
When an asset is acquired, the excess of the carrying amount over fair
value, if any, is charged to the ALLL. Subsequent valuations are per-
formed periodically and the carrying value is adjusted by a charge to
foreclosed asset expense to reflect any subsequent declines in the esti-
mated fair value. As a result, further declines in the asset values may
result in increased foreclosed asset expense. Routine holding costs are
charged to foreclosed asset expense as incurred.
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Business Combinations: In business combinations accounted for
using the purchase method of accounting, the net assets of the compa-
nies acquired are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of
acquisition and include the results of operations of the acquired business
from the date of acquisition. The excess of the purchase price over the
estimated fair value of the net assets acquired is recognized as goodwill.

Goodwill: With the adoption of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 142”), on January 1, 2002, goodwill is no
longer amortized to expense, but rather is tested for impairment periodi-
cally. Other intangible assets are amortized to expense using straight-line
methods over their respective estimated useful lives. At least annually,
management reviews goodwill and other intangible assets and evaluates
events or changes in circumstances that may indicate impairment in the
carrying amount of such assets. If the sum of the expected undiscounted
future cash flows, excluding interest charges, is less than the carrying
amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognized. Impairment, if
any, is measured on a discounted future cash flow basis. Goodwill is
reviewed for impairment annually and on an interim basis when condi-
tions require. If necessary an impairment charge is recognized in the
period that goodwill has been deemed to be impaired. At the date of
adoption, there was no unamortized goodwill.

Income taxes: Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the
future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
Tespective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using enacted tax rates expected to apply in the period(s) in which the
deferred tax asset or liability is expected to be settled or realized. The
effect on deferred taxes of a change in tax rates is recognized in income
in the period in which the change occurs. Deferred tax assets are
reduced, through a valuation allowance, if necessary, by the amount of
such benefits that are not expected to be realized based on current avail-
able evidence.

Earnings per common share: Basic earnings per common share
represents income available to common stockholders divided by the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted earnings per common share reflects additional common
shares that would have been outstanding if dilutive potential common
shares had been issued, as well as any adjustment to income that would
result from the assumed issuance. Potential common shares that may be
issued by the Company relate solely to outstanding stock options, and
are determined using the treasury stock method.

Segment Reporting: SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures About Segments
of an Enterprise and Related Information” (“SFAS No. 131”), requires
disclosures for each reportable operating segment. As a community-
oriented financial institution, substantially all of the Company’s
operations entail the delivery of loan and deposit products and various
other financial services to customers in its primary market area, which
is Bergen County, New Jersey. The Company’s community-banking
operation constitutes the Company’s only operating segment for
financial reporting purposes under SFAS No. 131.

Treasury Stock: The Corporation records common stock purchased
for treasury at cost. At the date of subsequent reissue, the treasury stock
account is reduced by the cost of such stock on the first-in, first-out
basis.




Stock-Based compensation: At December 31, 2002, the Company
has stock-based employee compensation plans, which are described
more fully in Note 12 Stock Option and Incentive Plan. The Company
accounts for these plans under APB Opinion No. 23, “Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations. No stock-based
employee compensation expense has been reflected in net income for
stock options as all rights and options to purchase the

Company'’ stock granted under these plans had an exercise price equal
to the market value of the underlying stock on the date of grant. A table,
which illustrates the income from continuing operations and earnings
per share as if the Corporation had applied the fair value recognition
provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,” as amended, to stock-based employee compensation
plans, is described more fully in Note 12 Stock Option and Incentive
Plan,

Recently issued accounting pronouncements: In October 2001,
the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No.
144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,”
which replaces SFAS No. 121. This statement primarily defines one
accounting model for long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale, includ-
ing discontinued operations, and addresses implementation issues
regarding the impairment of long-lived assets. The standard was effective
January 1, 2002 and did not have a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

In April 2002, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 145, Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64,
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections
(“SFAS 145”). SFAS 145 rescinds FASB Statement No. 4, Reporting
Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of Debt, and an amendment of
that Statement and FASB Statement No. 64, Extinguishments of Debt
Made to Satisty Sinking-Fund Requirements. SFAS 145 also rescinds
FASB Statement No. 44, Accounting for Intangible Assets of Motor
Carriers. SFAS 145 amends FASB Statement No. 13, Accounting for
Leases, to eliminate an inconsistency between the required accounting
for sale-leaseback transactions and the required accounting for certain
lease modifications that have economic effects that are similar to sale-
leaseback transactions. SFAS 145 also amends other existing authorita-
tive pronouncements to make various technical corrections, to clarify
meanings or to describe their applicability under changed conditions.
The provisions of SFAS 145 relating to the rescission of FASB Statement
No. 4 are effective [or fiscal years beginning after May 15, 2002, and the
provisions of SFAS 145 relating to FASB Statement No. 13 are effective
for transactions occurring after May 15, 2002. All other provisions of
SFAS 145 are effective for financial statements issued on or after May 15,
2002. The adoption of SFAS 145 did not have a material effect on the
consolidated financial condition or results of operations of the Company.

In July 2002, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or
Disposal Activities (“SFAS 146"). SFAS 146 requires companies to rec-
ognize costs associated with exit or disposal activities when they are
incurred rather than at the date of a commitment to an exit or disposal
plan. SFAS 146 replaces Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 94-3,
Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and
Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a
Restructuring). SFAS 146 is to be applied prospectively to exit or dis-
posal activities initiated after December 31, 2002.

In October 2002, the FASB issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 147 “Acquisitions of Certain Financial
Institutions” (“SFAS 147”), which provides guidance on the accounting
for the acquisitions of a financial institution. ~ SFAS 147 requires that
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the excess of the fair value of liabilities assumed over the fair value of
tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired in a business combi-
nation represents goodwill that should be accounted for under FASB
Statement No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. Thus, the
specialized accounting guidance in paragraph 5 of FASB Statement No.
72, Accounting for Certain Acquisitions of Banking or Thrift
Institutions, does not apply after September 30, 2002. 1f certain criteria
in Statement 147 are met, the amount of the unidentifiable intangible
asset will be reclassified to goodwill. Financial institutions meeting con-
ditions outlined in Statement 147 are required to restate previously
issued financial statements as if the amount accounted for under
Statement 72 as an unidentifiable intangible asset had been reclassified
to goodwill as of the date Statement 142 was initially applied. SFAS No.
147 became effective October 1, 2002 and did not have a material
impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

On November 23, 2002, the FASB issued Financial Accounting
Standards Board Interpretation No. 45 (“FIN 45” or the “Interpretation”),
“Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees,
Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others, an interpreta-
tion of FASB Statements No, 5, 57, and 107 and Rescission of FASB
Interpretation No. 34.” FIN 45 clarifies the requirements of FASB
Statement No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies,” relating to the guaran-
tor's accounting for, and disclosure of, the issuance of certain types of
guarantees. FIN 45 requires that upon issuance of a guarantee, the enti-
ty (i.e., the guarantor) must recognize a liability for the fair value of the
obligation it assumes under that guarantee. The disclosure provisions of
the Interpretation are effective for financial statements of interim or
annual periods that end after December 15, 2002. The Interpretation’s
provisions for initial recognition and measurement should be applied on
a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after December 31,
2002, irrespective of the guarantor’ fiscal year-end. The guarantor’s pre-
vious accounting for guarantees that were issued before the date of FIN
45's initial application may not be revised or restated to reflect the effect
of the recognition and measurement provisions of the Interpretation. See
Note 18 Commitments and Contingent Liabilities for the disclosures
currently required under FIN 45.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 148 (“SFAS 148"), “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation - Transition and Disclosure.” SFAS 148 amends
FASB Statement No. 123 (“SFAS 123"), “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,” to provide alternative methods of transition for a volun-
tary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based
employee compensation. In addition, SFAS 148 amends the disclosure
requirements of SFAS 123 to require prominent disclosures in both
annual and interim financial statements of the method of accounting for
stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the method used
on reported results. SFAS 148 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2002. The Company does not expect to adopt the fair
value based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensa-
tion; therefore, adoption of SFAS 148 is expected to impact only the
future disclosures, not the financial results, of the Company.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46,
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities - an Interpretation of ARB 51
(“FIN 46"). FIN 46 provides guidance on the consolidation of entities in
which equity investors do not have characteristics of a controlling finan-
cial interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to
finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support
from other parties. FIN 46 is effective immediately for entities created
before February 1, 2003 no later than the beginning of the first interim
or annual reporting period beginning after June 15, 2003. As of
December 31,2002, the Company does not have any interest in
variable interest entities.




Note 2. Acquisitions and Pending Merger

In 1994, the Bank assumed the deposit liabilities of Volunteer
Federal Savings Association of Little Ferry, New Jersey. The premiums
paid to acquire the deposits in the Volunteer transaction and in a 1991
branch acquisition are being amortized over a period ranging from seven
to ten years. At December 31, 2001, all acquired premiums were fully
amortized.

On January 16, 2002, the Company acquired certain assets and
assumed certain liabilities of Monarch Capital Corporation (“Monarch”).
In this asset purchase transaction, the Company acquired certain loans
and leases valued at approximately $13,700,000. In addition, the
Company assumed certain liabilities (borrowings) of Monarch, valued at
approximately $13,200,0000, which had been used to fund the loans and
leases. The purchase price was $2,252,000 paid in cash and in shares of
Company stock, subject to certain adjusiments. The cost in excess of net
assets acquired resulted in goodwill of approximately $1.4 million.

On November 18, 2002, the Company announced that it had
entered into a definitive agreement to acquire Bridge View Bancorp, a
Bergen County-based bank holding company with eleven locations.

At December 31, 2002, Bridge View had approximately $281 million
of total assets, $191 million of loans and $251 million of deposits.
The transaction is expected to be completed during the second quarter
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of 2003 and is conditioned upon receiving the necessary bank regulatory
approvals, the approval of shareholders from both companies and other
customary conditions. Bridge View shareholders will receive 2,949,719
shares of the Company common stock and approximately $33.5 million
in cash. The transaction will be accounted for as a purchase and the
cost in excess of net assets acquired will be aHocated to identified
intangible assets and goodwill.

At December 31, 2002, gross intangible assets amoumed to
$300,000 and accumulated amortization amounted to $69,000.
At December 31, 2001, there were no intangible assets remaining.
Amortization of intangible assets as a result of acquisitions, which is
included in non-interest expense, amounted to $69,000, $81,000
and $313,000 for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Note 3. Restrictions on Cash and

Due from Banks

The Bank is required to maintain a reserve balance with the Federal
Reserve Bank of New York based upon the level of its deposit lability.
The average amount of this reserve balance for 2002 and 2001 was
approximately $775,000.




Note 4. Securities Held-to-Maturity and Securities Available-for-Sale
Securities held-to-maturity and securities available-for-sale consist of the following: (in thousands)

Securities held-to-maturity
Mortgage-backed securities ...... .. ....... ... ...
Obligations of U.S. agencies .................. ...
Obligations of states & political subdivisions ... .. ...
Other debt securities ............................

Securities available-for-sale
Mortgage-backed securities ..... . ... ... ... .. .. ...
Obligations of U.S. agencies .................... ..
Obligations of states & political subdivisions ... ... ..
Equity securities . ... ........ ... ... .. ...

Total securities . ... ........ ... ... .. ... .. ... ...

Securities held-to-maturity
Mortgage-backed securities ............ ... ... .. ...,
Obligations of U.S. agencies ........................
Obligations of states & political subdivisions .. ...... ...
Other debt securities .............................

Securities available-for-sale
Obligations of US. Treasury . .......................
Mortgage-backed securities .............. . ... .. ...
Obligations of U.S. agencies ...................... ..
Obligations of states & political subdivisions ... ........
Equity securities . . ......... ... o

Total securities .. ......... .. .. ..

December 31, 2002

Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value
$ 16,437 § 667 - $ 17,104
1,991 68 - 2,059
9,664 663 - 10,327
100 - - 100
28,192 1,398 - 29,590
101,028 1,778 $201 102,605
81,577 3,982 - 95,559
21,382 889 52 22,219
3,937 - - 3,937
217,924 6,649 253 224,320
$246,116 $8,047 $253 $253,910

December 31, 2001

Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value
$ 22,201 $ 300 $ 9 $ 22,492
5,977 181 - 6,158
9,835 244 23 10,076
839 15 - 854
38,872 740 32 39,580
1,999 18 - 2,017
97,022 1,808 313 98,517
30,944 529 409 40,064
9,993 462 - 10,455
3,977 - - 3,977
152,935 2817 722 155,030
$191,807 $3,557 $75¢ $194,610

At December 31, 2002, the contractual maturities of securities held-to-maturity and securities available-for-sale are as follows: (in thousands)

Within Lyear ........ ... ... ... .. ...
After 1but within 5years .................... ... ...
After 5 but within 10 years ...................... ...
After10years........ ...
Equity securities ............ ... .. .ol

Total ...

Held-to-Maturity

Amortized

Estimated
Fair
Value
$ 2,820
10,192
12,425

4,153

$29,590

Available-for-Sale

Amortized

Cost

$ 18,799

147,066
20,400
27,722

3.937
$217,924

Estimated
Fair
Value
$ 18,753

151,767
21,067
28,796

3,937
$224.320
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Proceeds from the sale of securities available-for-sale amounted to
$21.9 million, $19.3 million and $33.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, which resulted in gross
realized gains of $573,000, $141,000 and $341,000 for those periods,
respectively. Gross realized losses from the sale of securities available-
for-sale amounted to $33,000, $19,000 and $31,000 in 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively. These amounts are included in net gain on sale of
securities in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Proceeds from the sale or call of securities held-to-maturity
amounted to $2.0 million for each of the years ended December 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, which resulted in realized gains
of $24,000, $130,000 and $2,000 for those periods, respectively. The
securities were either scheduled to mature within 3 months or were
called before maturity.

Securities with carrying amounts of $58.6 million and $44.6 million
at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, were pledged for public
deposits, Federal Home Loan Bank advances, securities sold under
repurchase agreements and other purposes required by law.

Note 5. Lgans

The composition of the loan portfolio is summarized as follows:
(in thousands)

December 31,
2002 2001
Real estate
Residential .. .................. .. $231,580 $252,745
Commercial . .................... 222,628 198,319
Construction .................... 11,359 5,265
Commercial
Commercial and financial .......... 104,542 85,801
Lease financing .................. 26,356 15,850
Consumer
Lease financing . ................. 15,969 18,822
Installment ..................... 3,207 4,521
615,641 581,323
Allowance for loan and lease losses . . . .. 7,207 6,569
Netloans ...................... $608,434 $574,754

Nonperforming loans include loans which are accounted for on a
nonaccrual basis and troubled debt restructurings.

Nonperforming loans are as follows: (in thousands)

December 31,
2002 2001
Nonaccrual loans
Residential real estate ............... $ 495 $ 385
Commercial real estate .............. 1,780 596
Commercial and financial ............ 1,300 40
Commercial lease financing ........... 2,357 1,043
Consumer ...............ouevin.. 31 96
5,963 2,160
Troubled debt restructurings
Commercial and financial ............ - 150
Total nonperforming assets ............. $5,963 $2.310

At December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, there were no loans or
leases on which interest is accruing and included in income, but which
were contractually past due 90 days or more as to principal or interest
payments. Interest income that would have been recorded during the
year on nonaccrual loans outstanding at year-end in accordance with
original terms amounted to $576,000, $231,000 and $143,000 for the
years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Interest
income included in net income during the year on nonaccrual loans out-
standing at year-end amounted to $321,000, $143,000 and $93,000 for
the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

While a significant portion of the Company’ loans are collateral-
ized by real estate located in northern New Jersey, the Company does not
have any concentration of loans in any single industry classified under
the North American Industry Classification System, which exceeds 10%
of its total loans and unfunded commitments.

Certain officers and directors of the Company and their affiliated
companies are customers of and are engaged in transactions with the
Company in the ordinary course of business on substantially the same
terms as those prevailing with other non-affiliated borrowers and
suppliers.

The following table summarizes activity with respect to these loans:

{in thousands)
Years Ended
December 31,
2002 2001
Balance at beginning of year . ... .. ... $6,133 $7.367
Additions . .......... .. ... ... L. - 858
Reductions ....................... (998) (2,092
Balance atend of year .. .......... .. $5,135 $6,133
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Note 6. Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses
The Company’s recorded investment in impaired loans is as follows: (in thousands)

Impaired loans
With a related allowance for loan losses
Commercial and financial
Commercial real estate
Without a related allowance for loan losses

December 31,
2002 2001
Investment Related Investment Related
in Allowance in Allowance
Impaired for Loan Impaired for Loan
Loans Losses Loans Losses
$1,104 $128 $190 $5
1,780 45 596 10
$2.884 $173 $786 $15

The impairment of the above loans was measured based on the fair value of collateral.

The following table sets forth certain information about impaired loans:
(in thousands)

Years Ended
December 31,
2002 2001
Average recorded investment ............ $3,166 $806
Interest income recognized during time
period that loans were impaired, using
cash-basis method of accounting . .. ... .. $160 $52

Note 7. Premises and Equipment, net
Premises and equipment are summarized as follows: (in thousands)

December 31,
2002 2001

Land ......... ... ... ... ... L $ 1,698 $ 1,698

Buildings ............. .. ... ... ... 2,195 2,195

Furniture, fixtures and equipment ........ 7,785 7,190

Leasehold improvements ............... 10,016 0,486

. $21,694 $20,569
Less: accumulated depreciation and

amortization . ...................... 11,182 10,334

Netbookvalue ................... $10,512 $10,235

Note 8. Deposits

Deposits are summarized as follows: (in thousands)

December 31
2002 2001
Non-interest bearing demand deposits . .. .. $118,578 $109,416
Interest bearing demand deposits ......... 323,998 282,173
Money market deposits . ................ 55,372 47,569
Savings deposits . ....... ... ...l 80,300 72,092
Time deposits .............. ... ... 237,424 215,233
Total ... ... ... .. ... ... ... $815,672 $726,483
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Changes in the allowance for loan and lease losses are summarized as
follows: (in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000

Balance at beginning of year. . ... .. $6,569  $6,154  $5476
Additions (deductions)

Provision charged to operations. ... 1,500 1,075 750

Recoveries on loans previously

chargedoff. . ................ 64 304 147

Loans chargedoff .............. (926) (964) (219)

Balance at end of year. . .......... $7,207  $6,569 $6,154

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the carrying amounts of
certificates of deposit that individually exceed $100,000 amounted to
$26,697,000, and $20,479,000, respectively. Interest expense relating
to certificates of deposit that individually exceed $100,000 was
approximately $1,009,000, $1,470,000, and $1,156,000 in 2002,
2001, and 2000, respectively.

At December 31, 2002, the scheduled maturities of time deposits
are as follows: (in thousands)

2003 ... $ 208,058

2004 ... 18,190

2005 ... 7,382

2006 ... 2,486

2007 ... 1,308
Total ........

$237,424



Note 9. Securities Sold Under Agreements to

Repurchase and Short-term Borrowings

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase and short-term
borrowings are summarized as follows: (in thousands)

December 31,
2002 2001
Securities sold under agreements
torepurchase .................. $17,390 $ 6,700
Federal Funds Purchased ........... - 11,100
Federal Home Loan Bank advances . . . . - 7,000
$17,390 $24,800
Average balance outstanding . . . ... ... $19,118 $25,545
Average interestrate ............... 3.63% 5.38%
Maximum amount borrowed ........ $30,607 $29,900

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase mature within one
year. In addition, the Bank has a $86,300,000 line of credit available
through its membership in the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB") of
New York.

Note 10. Long-term Borrowings

Long term borrowings consist of one FHLB advance of
$10,000,000. The borrowing has a fixed rate of 4.22%, matures in
January 2007 and is collateralized by U.S. Treasury and U.S. agency
securities. The FHLB has an option to call the advance on a quarterly
basis if the 3-month LIBOR resets above 7.50%.

Note 11. Benefit Plans

In 1993, the Bank established a non-contributory defined benefit
pension plan covering all eligible employees (the “Pension Plan”). The
funding policy is to contribute an amount that is at least the minimum
required by law. The plan assets are invested through an unaffiliated
trust company in a fixed income and equity (balanced) fund. The fund
performance is reviewed periodically by an administrative committee
comprised of the Banks President, Chief Financial Officer and Human
Resources Director. Retirement income is based on years of service
under the Pension Plan and, subject to certain limits, on final average
compensation. Effective January 1, 1994, the Bank established a supple-
mental plan covering all eligible employees (the “Supplemental Plan”)

Net pension cost of each plan consists of the following: (in thousands)

that provides for retirement income that would have been paid but for
the limitation under the qualified Pension Plan.

Effective August 1, 1994, the Company established a retirement
plan for all directors of the Bank who are not employees of Interchange
or of any subsidiary or affiliate of Interchange (the “Directors’ Plan”). As
a part of this Directors’ Plan, the Company contributes annually to a life
insurance policy or annuity contract for each director with 5 years or
more of service, as follows:

Years of Service Amount Contributed

6 $5,000
7 6,000
8 7,000
9 8,000
10 9,000
11 or more 10,000

The Company owns the life insurance policies or annuity contracts.
Retirement income to a director who has completed five years of service
through ten years of service will be based on the cash value of the life
insurance policy or annuity contract. After ten years of service, the
retirement income will be based on the greater of the cash value of the
life insurance policy or annuity contract or an amount determined by
multiplying the Bank’s standard annual retainer fees at the director’s
retirement date by the director’s years of service.

On January 1, 2002, the Directors’ Plan was amended. Pursuant to
the amended Directors’ Plan, a director who has been on the board at
least five years is entitled to receive upon retirement an amount equal
to the standard annual retainer {currently $10,000) being paid to direc-
tors multiplied by the director’s years of service on the board, multiplied
by the director’s vested percentage. Vesting occurs in 20% increments
commencing in year six and ending in year ten at which time a director
becomes fully vested.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the benefits payable to a participant
who was a participant on January 1, 2002 shall not be less than the
greater of (i) or (ii) below: (i) the benefits such participant had accrued
as of such date under the terms and provision of the Directors’ Plan in
effect prior to the January 1, 2002 amendment, or (ii) the cash value of
any life insurance policy that was purchased and owned by the Company
or one of its subsidiaries prior to the plan amendment. The benefit may
be paid in a lump sum or paid out in five annual installment payments
at the election of the participant.

Pension Plan Supplemental Plan Directors' Plan

2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
SETVICE COSL oot vt et $331 $249 $197 $25 $19 $24 $ 72 $49 8§57
Interest cost .. .ovvvv i 150 116 95 19 14 17 98 94 88
Expected return on planassets.............. (120) (100 (88) - - - - - -
Amortization of prior service cost ........... 2 - 3 8 8 - -
Recognized net actuarial gain . .............. - (s @D - o - - - -
Net periodic benefit cost .................. $363 $247 $177 $47 $34 $49 $179 $143 $145




The following table sets forth the funded status, as of December 31, of each plan and amounts recognized in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets
and the major assumptions used to determine these amounts: (dollars in thousands)

Pension Plan

Supplemental Plan

Directors' Plan

2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
Change in pensicn obligation
Pension obligation at beginning of year ...... .. $ 2,000 $1,626 $ 288 $ 274 $ 1,411 $ 1,259
Service cost ... 331 249 25 19 72 49
Interestcost ................ . ...l 150 116 19 14 98 94
Plan ammendments ........... ... - 36 - (36) - -
Actuarial (gain) loss ....................... 513 7 20 17 (26) 9
Benefitspaid . ............. ... . (32) (39 - - - -
Pension obligation at end of year ............. 2,962 2,000 352 _ 288 1,555 1,411
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year . ... 1,401 1,198 - - - -
Actual gain (loss) on planassets ... ........... (107) 50 - -
Employer contribution ..................... 135 187 - -
Benefitspaid . .......... .. ... (32) (34) - - - -
Fair value of plan assets at end of year ... ... ... 1,397 1,401 : - - -
Funded Status . ........ ... (1,563) (599) $(352) (288) (1,555) (1411)
Unrecognized net actuarial (gain) loss ......... 463 77) 53 33 (91) (64)
Unrecognized prior service cost .............. 30 32 _ 18 2 - -
Accrued pension cost .. ..., $(1,072) $ (844) $(280) $(233) $(1,646) $(1,475)
Weighted-average assumptions
DIiSCOUNLTAE . ..o vt 6.50% 7.25% 6.50% 7.25% 6.50% 7.25%
Expected return on plan assets ............... 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00
Rate of compensation ncrease ............... 5.00 5.00 N/A N/A N/A N/A

(1) Weighted average assumptions were applied at the beginning of the period.

In 1976, the Bank established a Capital Investment Plan (the
“Investment Plan”) which permits employees to make basic contribu-
tions up to 4% of base compensation. In 1998, the Investment Plan was
amended to permit employees to make basic contributions up to 6% of
base compensation. Additional contributions up to 10% of compensa-
tion may be made when coupled with basic contributions. Under the
Investment Plan, the Bank provides a matching contribution equal to
50% of the basic contribution of each participant. The Investment Plan
offers employees a choice of 9 investment funds ranging from conserva-
tive to aggressive. Both employee and bank matching contributions are

invested in these funds according to the employees’ elections. The
investment choices are administered by an unaffiliated trust company.
The fund options are reviewed periodically by an administrative commit-
tee comprised of the Bank’s President, Chief Financial Officer and
Human Resources Director. In addition, the Bank makes a fixed contri-
bution on behalf of each participant equal to 1% of such participant’s
base compensation, which is in the form of Interchange common stock.
The Bank’s contribution to the Investment Plan amounted to $281,000,
$236,000 and $165,000 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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Note 12. Stock Option and Incentive Plan

In 1989, the Company adopted a stock option plan, retitled the
Stock Option and Incentive Plan of 1997 (the “Stock Plan”), that covers
certain key employees. Under this plan, as amended, options to pur-
chase a maximum of 1,384,313 shares of Interchange common stock

may be granted at fair market value at the date of grant. Options grant-
ed expire if not exercised within ten years of date of grant and are exer-
cisable according to a vesting schedule, starting one year from the date
of grant. Pursuant to the Stock Plan, incentive stock options or non-
qualified stock options may be granted to employees.

In 2000, the Company adopted a stock option plan, titled “Outside
Director's Incentive Compensation Plan” (the “Director’s Stock Plan”)
that covers those members of the Board of Directors of the Company

who have not served as a full-time employee of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries during the prior twelve-month period. Under this plan,
options to purchase a maximum of 150,000 shares of Interchange com-
mon stock may be granted at fair market value at the date of grant.
Options granted expire if not exercised within ten years of date of grant
and are exercisable according to a vesting schedule, starting one year
from the date of grant. Only non-qualified stock options are granted
under the Director’s Stock Plan.

The status of options granted under the Stock Plan and Director’s
Stock Plan as of December 31, and changes during each of the three
years then ended is summarized below:

2002 2001 2000
Weighted- Weighted Weighted-
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Incentive Stock Options Options Price Options Price Options Price
Quistanding at January 1 ....... ... . ... ... 343,992 $10.36 277,094 $10.06 229,482 $ 923
Granted .............. oo 133,875 i4.70 94,500 10.79 85,875 11.00
Exercised ................. ... ... (20,660) 7.34 (13,226) 6.17 (24,951) 491
Forfeited ... ..... ... ... .. (8,191) 12.62 (14,376) 11.24 (13,312) 11.57
Outstanding at December 31 ................ 449,016 $11.75 343,992 $10.36 277,004 $10.06
Options exercisable at December 31 .. ......... 332,141 $11.06 184,733 9.88 125,340 $ 862
Weighted-average fair value of options
granted during the year ended
December 31 (peroption) ................ $4.00 $2.85 $2.97
2002 2001 2000
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Non-Qualified Stock Options Options Price Options Price Options Price
Qutstanding at January 1 ................... 33,060 $10.70 16,500 $ 9.33 - -
Granted ........ ... ... oo 16,560 18.33 16,500 12.07 16,500 $9.33
Exercised ....... ... (4,580) 10.24 - - - -
Forfeited .. ............ ... - - - - -
Outstanding at December 31 ................ 45,000 $13.54 33,000 $10.70 16,500 $9.33
Options exercisable at December 31 ........... 12,000 $10.24 5,495 $ 9.33 - -
Weighted-average fair value of options
granted during the year ended
December 31 (per option) ................ $5.04 $2.67 $2.51

All per share data and average shares were restated to reflect a 3-for-2 stock split declared on May 23, 2002 and paid on July 12, 2002.
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The following table summarizes information about options outstanding under the Stock Plan and Director’s Stock Plan at December 31, 2002:

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weight-
ed-average assumptions used for grants in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respec-
tively: dividend yield of 2.37%, 2.66%, 3.21%; expected volatility of
25.12%, 22.02% and 23.89%; risk-free interest rate of 4.65%, 5.03% and
6.48%; and expected lives of 7 years. The effects of applying these
assumptions in determining the pro-forma net income may not be repre-
sentative of the effects on pro-forma net income for future years.

2002 2001 2000

Net Income

Asteported. .. ..............

Less: Total stock-based
compensation expense
determined under the fair value
method for all rewards, net of
related tax effects

Proforma..................

$12,877 $10340  $9,256

82
59,174

120
$12,757

89
$10,451

Diluted earnings per common share
Asreported.................
Less: Total stock-based

compensation expense
determined under the fair value
method for all rewards, net of
related tax effects
Proforma..................

$1.07 $0.94

0.01
$0.93

$1.07

All per share data and average shares were restated to reflect a 3-for-2
stock split declared on May 23, 2002 and paid on July 12, 2002.
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Weighted-
Average Weighted- Weighted-
Range of Remaining Average Average
Exercise Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Prices Outstanding Life (years) Price Exercisable Price
Incentive Stock Options
$0-%5 24,899 0.67 $4.79 24,899 $4.79
$ 5-810 9,744 3.28 5.57 9,744 5.57
$10 - 815 414,373 7.54 12.3% 297,498 11.77
449,016 332,141
Non-Qualified Steck Options
$ 5-$10 13,500 7.33 9.33 8,000 9.33
$10 - 815 15,000 8.38 12.07 4,000 12.07
$15 - $20 16,560 9.32 18.33 - -
45,000 12,000
Total 494,016 344,141

Stock-based compensation

Pursuant to the Stock Plan, key employees may be awarded restrict-
ed shares of Interchange common stock subject to certain vesting and
restrictions. The awards are recorded at fair market value and amortized
into salary expense over the vesting period. The following table sets
forth the changes in restricted stock awards outstanding for the years
ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000.

If compensation cost for the Stock Plan and Director’s Stock Plan Restricted Stock Awards 2002 2001 2000
awards had been measured based on the fair value of the stock options Outstanding at beginning of year . . 38,250 34,805 36258
awarded at the grant dates, net income and diluted earnings per com- Granted . ..o 15542 22320 17,109
mon share would have been reduced to the pro-forma amounts below Vested .. (20,388) (18.875) (18,562)
for the years ended December 31: (in thousands, except share data) Forfeited. . . ..\ . . .

Qutstanding at end of year. ... ... 33404 38250 34,805

The amount of compensation cost related to restricted stock awards
included in salary expense in 2002, 2001 and 2000 amounted to
$196,291, $184,722 and $167,939, respectively.



Note 13. Stockholders’ Equity
and Regulatory Capital

The Company and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital
requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to
meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and
possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertak-
en, could have a direct material effect on the Company’s financial state-
ments. Under capital adequacy guidelines, the Company and the Bank
must meet specific capital levels that involve quantitative measures of
their assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated
under regulatory accounting practices. The Company’s and the Bank’s
capital amounts and the Bank's classification, under the regulatory
framework for prompt corrective action, are also subject to qualitative
judgments by the regulators about components, risk weighting, and
other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital
adequacy require the Company and the Bank to maintain minimum
amounts and ratios of total and Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets and
Tier 1 capital to average assets. Management believes, that the Company
and the Bank met as of December 31, 2002, all capital adequacy require-
ments to which they are subject.

As of December 31, 2002, the most recent notification from the
Federal Reserve categorized the Bank as "well capitalized" under the reg-
ulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as
“well capitalized,” the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based,
Tier 1 risk-based and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the following
table. There are no conditions or events since that notification that
management believes have changed the institution's category.

The Company's and the Bank's capital amounts and ratios are as follows: (dollars in thousands)

To Be
“Well Capitalized”
For Capital Under Prompt Corrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2002: — _
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets):
The Company ......................... $82,658 13.33% $49,619 8.00% N/A N/A
TheBank ............................. 80,813 13.00% 49,714 8.00% $62,143 10.60%
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets):
The Company ......................... 75,451 12.16% 24,809 4.60% N/A N/A
TheBamk ............................. 73,606 11.84% 24,857 4.00% 37,286 6.00%
Tier 1 Capitel (to Average Assets):
The Company ......................... 73,451 8.12% 27,864 3.00% N/A N/A
TheBank ................ ... . ... 73,606 7.92% 27,868 3.00% 46,446 5.00%
As of December 31, 2001;
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets):
The Company ..............oovinen.s $73,700 12.89% $45,727 8.00% N/A N/A
TheBank ............ ............ ..., 71,916 12.58% 45,733 8.00% $57,166 10.00%
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets):
The Company . ......................... 67,131 11.74% 22,864 4.00% N/A N/A
TheBank ............................. 65,347 11.43% 22,866 4.00% 34,299 6.00%
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets):
The Company .......................... 67,131 8.09% 24,901 3.00% N/A N/A
TheBank ................... ... .. ... 65,347 7.93% 24,727 3.00% 41,212 5.00%
Shaves of common stock
On April 26, 2001, the Board of Directors of Interchange authorized ~ The following table summarizes the activity in common shares:
a program to repurchase up to 450,000 shares of Interchange's outstand- Shares in
ing common stock on the open market or in privately negotiated trans- Shares Issued Treasury
actions. As of December 31, 2002, the Company had purchased 170,193 Balance at December 31,2000 ....... 9,795,748 1,116,202
shares at a total cost of approximately $2,175,000, of which 29,550 Purchase of treasury stock . . . .. . .. . (140,643) 140,643
shares were purchased in 2002 for total cost of $432,000. Issuance of stock from treasury .. .. 35,546 (35,546)
The repurchased shares are held as treasury stock and will be -
principally used for the exercise of stock options, restricted stock Balance at December 31, 2001 ....... 9,690,651 1,221,299
awards under the Stock Plan and other general corporate purposes. Purchase of treasury stock .. . ... ... (29,550) 29.550
Issuance of stock from treasury .. .. 154,106 (154,106)
Balance at December 31, 2002 . ... .. 9,815,207 1,096,743
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All per share data and average shares were restated to reflect a 3-for-2
stock split declared on May 23, 2002 and paid on July 12, 2002.




Note 14. Earnings Per Common Share

The reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted earnings per common share computations for the
years ended December 31 are as follows: (in thousands, except per share data)

2002 2001 2000
Weighted Per Weighted Per Weighted ~ Per
Net Average Share Net Average Share Net Average  Share
Income Shares  Amount  Income Shares ~ Amount Income Shares  Amount
Basic Earnings per Common Share
Income available to common
shareholders .................... $12,877 9,809 $1.31 $10,540 9,779 $1.08 $9,256 9,810 $0.94
Effect of Dilutive Shares
Optionsissued . ................... 124 _ 44 2
Diluted Earnings per Common Share
Income available to commeon
shareholders .................... $12,877 9,933 $1.30 $10,540 9,822 $1.07 $9,256 9,837 $0.94

All per share data and average shares were restated to reflect a 3-for-2 stock split declared on May 23, 2002 and paid on July 12, 2002.

Note 15. Other Non-interest Expense

Expenses included in other non-interest expense which exceed one
percent of the aggregate of total interest income and non-interest income
for the years ended December 31, are as follows: (in thousands)

2002 2001 2000
Professional fees............... $1,458 $1,240  $1,120
Data Processing . .............. 639 568 575
Note 16. Income Taxes
Income tax expense for the years ended December 31, is
summarized as follows: (in thousands)
2002 2001 2000
Federal: current............... $6,586  $4908  $5,264
deferred. ............. (732) (96) (789)
State:  current............... 242 236 117
deferred . ............. - - -
$6,096 $5,048  $4592

The effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions
of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31,
are as follows: (in thousands)

2002 2001
Deferred tax assets
Excess of book over tax allowance for
loan and lease losses . . ............... $2,468 32,244
Excess of book over tax depreciation ... ... 280 111
Excess of book over tax provision
for benefit plan expense .. ............ 1,038 873
Core deposit premium . ................ 195 250
Other ............ ... ... oo 448 378
Total deferred tax assets . ............. 4,429 3,856
Deferred tax liabilities
Unrealized gains - securities available
forsale ............ ... ... .. .... 2,175 712
Loan originationfees .................. 189 195
Other ........... . ... ... ..o .. 430 217
Total deferred tax liabilities. ......... .. 2,794 1,124
Net deferred tax assets . .............. $1,635  $2,732
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Net deferred tax assets are included in other assets on the consoli-
dated balance sheet. 1t is more likely than not that deferred tax assets
of $1,635,000 will be principally realized through future reversals of
existing taxable temporary differences and, to a lesser extent, future
taxable income and tax planning strategies.

The provision for income taxes differs from the expected statutory
provision as follows: .

December 31,

2002 2001 2000
Expected provision at statutory rate 35% 35% 35%
Difference resulting from:
State income tax, net of
federal benefit. . ........... 1 1 1
Interest income exempt from
federal taxes .. ............ ) 2) 2)
Other................... (2) _ 2 ey
T R% 2% 33%

Note 17. Restrictions of Subsidiary
Bank Dividends

Under New Jersey law, the Bank may declare a dividend only if,
after payment thereof, its capital would be unimpaired and its remaining
surplus would equal 50 percent of its capital. At December 31, 2002,
undistributed net assets of the Bank were $78,834,000 of which
$74,516,000 was available for the payment of dividends. In addition,
payment of dividends is limited by the requirement to meet the capital
guidelines issued by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System.



Note 18. Commitments and

Contingent Liabiiities

The Company has contingent liabilities and outstanding
commitments that include agreements to extend credit which arise
in the normal course of business and which are not shown in the
accompanying financial statements.

Loan commitments are made to accommodate the financial needs
of the Company’s customers. Standby letters of credit commit the
Company to make payments on behalf of customers when certain
specified future events occur. They are issued primarily to support
performance bonds. Both arrangements have credit risks essentially
the same as that involved in extending loans to customers and are
subject to the normal credit policies of the Company.

A summary of commitments to extend credit at December 31, are
summarized as follows: (in thousands)

2002 2001
Home equity loans . ................... $ 64346 § 63,616
Otherloans . ........................ 90,156 64,647
Standby letters of credit . ............... 1,127 2,155
$155,629  $130,418

The following table illustrates the Company’s accounting for, and
disclosure of, the issuance of certain types of guarantees as required
under FIN 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.”

Maximum
potential amount Carrying amount
of future payments  of the liability

$1,127 $ -

Nature of the guarantee
Standby letters of credit

Standby letters of credit are typically underwritten for terms of less
than one year and are fully collateralized by either cash or indirectly
secured by a line of credit, which is collateralized by real estate,
receivables or other liquid collateral.
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The minimum annual rental under non-cancelable operating leases
for premises and equipment, exclusive of payments for maintenance,
insurance and taxes, is summarized as follows: (in thousands)

Lease commitments

2003 ... $ 1,630
2004 .. 1,443
2005 .. 1,325
2006 ... 1,084
2007 ..o 989
thereafter . ................... 5,280
Total minimum lease payments ... $11,751

Rent expense for all leases amounted to approximately
$1,727,000, $1,524,000 and $1,405,000 in 2002, 2001, and 2000,
Tespectively.

A director of the Company provided legal services through his
affiliated firm. Fees paid for these services amounted to approximately
$296,000, $309,000 and $333,000 in 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively.

The Company is also a party to routine litigation involving various
aspects of its business, none of which, in the opinion of management
and its legal counsel, is expected to have a material adverse impact on
the consolidated financial condition, results of operations or liquidity
of the Company.




Note 18. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value estimates of the Company’s financial instruments are
made at a particular point in time, based on relevant market information
and information about the financial instrument. Fair values are most
commonly derived from quoted market prices. In the event market
prices are not available, fair value is determined using the present value
of anticipated future cash flows. This method is sensitive to the various
assumptions and estimates used and the resulting fair value estimates

may be significantly affected by minor variations in those assumptions
or estimates. In that regard, it is likely the Company in immediate
settlement of the financial instruments would realize amounts different
from the fair value estimates.

The following table sets forth the carrying amounts and estimated
fair values of the Companys financial instruments: (in thousands)

December 31,
2002 2001
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Financial assets: - -
Cash and cash equivalents .................... $ 33,916 $ 33,916 $ 22211 $ 22211
Securities held-to-maturity ................... 28,192 29,590 38,872 39,580
Securities available-for-sale .................. . 224,320 224,320 155,030 155,030
Loans, Met .. ... 608,434 618,028 574,754 577,847
$894,862 $905,854 $790,867 $794,668
Financial liabilities:
Deposits ... $815,672 $817,661 $726,483 $729,281
Short-term borrowings ...................... 17,390 17,390 24,800 24,800
Long-term borrowings ...................... 10,000 10,438 - -
$845,489 $751,283 $754,081

$843,062

The methods and significant assumptions used to determine the
estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are as
follows:

Cash and cash equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include cash
on hand, amounts due from banks and federal funds sold. The estimat-
ed fair values of these financial instruments approximate their carrying
values since they mature overnight or are due on demand.

Securities held-to-maturity and securities available-for-sale:
Estimated fair values are based principally on quoted market prices,
where available, or dealer quotes. In the event quoted market prices are
not available, fair values are estimated using market prices of similar
securities.

Loans: The loan portfolio is segregated into various categories for pur-
poses of estimating fair value. The fair value of certain loans that reprice
frequently and have no significant change in credit risk is assumed to
equal their carrying values. The fair value of other types of loans is esti-
mated by discounting the future cash flows using interest rates that are
currently being offered for loans with similar terms to borrowers with
similar credit quality. The fair value of nonperforming loans is estimated
using methods employed by management in evaluating the ALLL.
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Deposits: The estimated fair values of deposits with no stated maturity,
such as demand deposits, savings, NOW and money market accounts
are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand at the report-
ing date. The fair values of fixed-rate certificates of deposit are based on
discounting the remaining contractual cash flows using interest rates
currently being offered on certificates of deposit with similar attributes
and remaining maturities.

Short-tevm bovrowings: The fair value of short-term borrowings is
assumed to equal the carrying value in the financial statements, as these
instruments are short-term.

Long-term bovrowings: Fair value estimates of long-term borrow-
ings are based on discounting the remaining contractual cash flows
using rates, which are comparable to rates currently being offered for
borrowings with similar remaining maturities.

Off-balance-sheet financial instruments: The fair values of com-
mitments to extend credit and unadvanced lines of credit approximate
the fees currently charged to enter into similar transactions, considering
the remaining terms of the commitments and the credit-worthiness of
the potential borrowers. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the estimated
fair values of these off-balance-sheet financial instruments were
immaterial.



Note 20. Parent Company Only Infermation
(in thousands)

Condensed balance sheets
Assets

Dividends receivable
Total assets
Liabilities
Dividends payable
Other liabilities

Stockholders' equity
Common stock
Capital Surplus
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income

Less: Treasurﬁ stock

Total stockholders' equity
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

December 31,

2001
$ 721
66,449

142
2,072

Years Ended December 31,

Condensed statements of income 2002 2001 2000
Dividends from subsidiary bank ........... ... oo $ 3,107 $ 6,467 $8,587
Net gain on sale of securities . ............. .. . ... - 20 -
Other inCome . ... ... . e 1 21 -
Total TEVENULS . .. ... . o 3,108 6,508 8,587
Interest on short-term borrowings . ... ...... ... ... - - 77
Operating eXPenses . . . ... ..vu ittt 176 270 122
Income before equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries .................. 2,832 6,238 8,388
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries ................. ... ... ... 9,945 4,302 868
NEUINCOME . . ot e e $12.877 $10,540 $9,256
Years Ended December 31,
Condensed statements of cash flows 2002 2001 2000
Cash flows from operating activities:
NetiNCOME . o .\ttt et e e $12,877 $10,540 $9,256
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities
Net gain on sale of securities .. .......... ... ... i - 20) -
Decrease (increase) In 0ther assets . . ... ..ot vvne e 485 (1,277) (816)
Increase in dividends payable ....... ... .. .. o 501 56 11
Increase (decrease) in other Habilities .. ... ... ... ... . ... .. . ... .. ..., (138) 138 (8)
Equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries ............................ (9,945) (4,302) (868)
Net cash provided by operating activities . . ... ..ot iiverins 3,779 5,135 7,575
Cash flows from investing activities:
Sale of securities available-for-sale .. ............ ... ... ... .. ... .. ... - 40 -
Net cash provided by investing activities .. .................. .. ... ...... - 40 -
Cash flows from financing activities:
Cashdividendspaid ........ ... .. o (4,321) (3,517) (3,262)
Repayment of loan from subsidiary .......... ... . ... ... ..o, - - (1,000
Treasury Stock . .. ..o (432) (1,727) (3,797)
Common stockissued . ... ... 1,685 241 190
Exercise of option shares .. ........... ... .. 198 82 120
Net cash used in financing activities ............ . ... ... .. .. ... (2,870) (4,921) (7,749)
Net increase/(decrease) incash ....... ... ... ... ... ... . i 909 254 (174)
Cashatbeginning of year ......... ... ... .. . . . . i i 721 467 641
Cashatendofyear ....... ... ... . . $ 1,630 $ 721 $ 467




Note 21, Quarterly Financial Data

(unaudited) (in thousands, except per share data)

First Second Third Fourth
2002 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Interest income .. .............. ..., $13,744 $14,200 $14,370 $14,185
Interest expemse ................ . ... ...l 4,676 4,574 4,309 3,918
Net Interestincome ................ ... ... .. ... ...... 9,068 9,626 10,061 10,267
Provision fer loamiosses ............. ... ... .. .. ..... 225 255 405 615
Net gain on sale of securities .......................... 187 94 214 69
Non-interest income, excluding net gain on sale of securities 1,374 1,383 1,560 1,632
Non-interest expenses .............. .. ................ 6,132 6,292 6,326 6,312
Income before income taxes ........................... 4,273 4,556 5,104 5,040
Netincome ......... ... .. ... ... ... ... .. 2,940 3,065 3,457 3,416
Basic earnings per commeon share ....... ... ... .. ... ..., $0.30 $0.31 $0.35 $0.35
Diluted earnings per common share .................... $0.30 $0.31 $0.35 $0.34

First Second Third Fourth
2001 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
INEreSt INCOME . . o oottt et e e e e $14,602 $14,551 $14,243 $14,007
Interest eXPenSe .. ...ttt 6,486 6,140 5,668 5,151
Net Interest income . ......... ... ouiirnirninannann., 8,116 8,411 8,575 8,856
Provision for loanlosses ............ ... ... ... ... ... .. .. 180 200 210 485
Net gain on sale of securities ........................... 65 54 129 5
Non-interest income, excluding net gain on sale of securities . .. 1,159 1,101 1,336 1,730
NoON-Interest eXPenses . ..........vurerrineiniien., 5,686 5,732 5,697 5,758
Income before income taxes . ......... ... ... ... .. ... ... 3474 3,634 4133 4348
Netincome . ......... .t 2,331 2474 2,793 2,942
Basic earnings per common share ........... ... .. ..., 0.24 0.25 0.29 030
Diluted earnings per common share ................... ... 0.24 0.25 0.29 0.30

All per share data has been restated to reflect a 3-for-2 stock split declared on May 23, 2002 and paid on July 12, 2002.
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